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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ABOUT US

international Entertainment Heoldings Limited {the Company} is an intemationdl holding group majority owned
by Pravidence Equity Partners. The principal activity of the Company i§ to hold companies that coamy out
complementary activities across the value chain of five entertainment and theatre-related activity, principally
in the UK, USA, and Continental Exrope [Hhe Groupl. The Group considers that these markets have significant
potantial for growth and forms the bigsis for the Group's strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Compony's imain holding is The Ambassador Theatre Group Limitad [ATG). ATG is a global leader in five
entertainment and is a fully integrated operaior across the entire live entertainment value chain, with activities
invenue cperations. ficketing, markeling services and contant praduction. ATG operates in Germnany through
its subsidiory Mehrl-BB Entertainment GmbH {Mehrl-BB), which was formed by the merger of the Mehrl Group
{ocguired in May 2018) with the B8 Entertoinment Group of companies jacquired in May 20151

QOVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is focused on providing o high level of service to iwo groups of customers; producers and Gudisnce
members. By making the end-to-end “customer journey " of our audience top prority, we will ensure that our
venues are the best stages for the highest guaiity content developed by both our own in-house as well as ¥2
parfy producers.

Venue Qperalions

The aim of our venue operations division s fo pravide a great service to both our producers and our avdience
members. We generafe revenues from renting our venues o productiors as well as selling food and
beverages 1o our oudience members.

Over the last Financial year, to help mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the Group's capital expenditure has
been reghased and pricvitzed on essential maintenance. However, as we move towards the easing of
government restrictions and re-opening of venues, investment inimproving the quaiity of venues to enhance
aur customers’ theatre-going experience will resume. Mary of the Group's verwes are historc buildings
which have on important significonce in their local arecs. Investrnent in the maintenance of thase buildings
is central to the Group's custodianship of them for the benefits of Future gererations of audiences. The
development and improvement of thass venues to meet the needs and expectations of todQy's audiences
and producers are egually impartant,

n the UK, the Group owns and operates some of the most iconic venues with 10 in London and 21 more
across the country. The Group operates 15 theahes in the USA, Inciuding two Broadway venues (the Lyric
and the Hudson}, and 13 theatres in other US cities, The Graup also operates five venues in Germany as part
of tha Mahrl-BB Entertainment Group.

Ticketing

The Group operates the largest theatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the majority of tickets 1o shows
in its venues through its own ticketing businesses.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Content Production

A key strategy of the Group's Contenit Production division is to find, secure, and produce high-quality shows
for both ATG and third-parly venues. The Group develops and produces new conten! in addition to co-
producing, investing in and presenting content from independent producers.

Markeling

Tha Group through its subsidiary companies of AKA Groaup, headquarered in Londan and BB Group, head-
quartered in Mannheim, Germany. is able to offer ¢ wide range of marketing services, which are inine and
complementary to the Group's overal strategy. AKA. a global entedainment marketing and medio
adverlising agency for the five enterfainment, arts and cultural industries has offices in London, manchaester,
Mew York ond Australia. AKA has continued 1o support the Group's sirategy of developing independent yet
complementary business fines to provide a fullservice expedence to clients within the theatre and live
entertainment ndustry. Furthermore, AKA has seen ifs business offering extend lurther afisid with clients not
directly inked to the live entertginment indusiry, such @ museums, galleries, gardens and zoological centres.

Alongside its production senvices, Mehr-BB Group, via ifs subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for live

entertanment productions in Gemman-speaking Europe.
REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's cperations were significantly disrupted in FY21 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. All jurisdictions in
which the Group operates had sociol distancing restrictions which required the closure of all #s venues.
Throughout the year, the Group has been focused on conserving cash through cost restructuning ond supplier
negotiations os well os implernenting avaiable govemment support, in the fommn of furlough schemes, fax

payment deferrals, business rates relief and gronts,

The Group has renegotiated its covenants with ifs lenders and extended the malurity of its senior laans to 2025.
The Group also roised additional funds from a new minority investor, Amplify Capital investment Pte. Ltd, which
is owned by Sivericke Partners,

The Group has postponed the majority of its programming info the future and as a result, has retained a high
proportion of the balance of advances sales of lickets sokd pre-COVID-19 shut down.

The toss before tax for the period was £147.1 milion {2020: £33.2 milion]. Curent year and prior year l0sses ore
ailtrbutable to the mpact of COVID-19 on the Group.

Trmridintitnr. lmtmenl 1800



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LYMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFQRMANCE INDICATORS (KPls)

Revenue Operoling loss
oatm (£94.6mm)
) T [2020: £2.2m operating
{2020: £476.7rm] : e

Non-financial KPis;

Due to the closure of venues throughout FY21. 1he non-inancial KPIs usually used to monitor the business
have not been considered by management, with focus instead on cash management and cost reduction.

Financial KPts:

- Revenue of £41.4m decreased 1% from 2020 as COVID-1? forced the closure of all of the Group”s
venuas for the full year. Plaase refer to note 3 tor geographical andalysis of revenue.

- The operating loss of £94.6m results from the reduction In revenue, olfset by lower cost of sales and
action faken by management to reduce operaling expenseas,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The puosition of the Group at the pericd-and is set out in the consofidated statement of financiat position on
pages 40 and 41, the consoldated statement of cash flows on page 44 and in the related notes on pages 45
to 89,

- Cash from operating activilies was a net cash outflow of £108.5 million {2020: inflow of £62.2 milion). This
reflects the impact of COVID-19 on the year's trading, with an operating loss of £94.6 milion {2020:
operating profit £2.2 enilion) and negative net warking copital cash fow of £43.5 milion [2020: positive
£10.7 milion].

- Investing cash flows include £14.8 milion [2020: £54.1 milion) of capitd expenditure, Copital expendifure
was minimized in the year o praserve cash. This was offset by £1.4 milfion (2020: £1.9 milion} net
recoupment in snow investments in the period.

- Net debt, including finance lease fabiities, s consistent with prior year at £564. lmiflion {2020 £564.2
milion). New shareholder loans of £135.0 million were raised, offset by repayment of £85.5 million of bank
loans and £11.1 mikion of finance lease repayments. Closing cash was £185.4 million. up from £1.39.1 milfion
at March 2020, and included a £2.6 milion escrow balance {2020: £8.8 milion).

- New shares were issued during 1he year, raising £151.3 milion,

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

teveroge and liguidily

The Group agreed with its lenders temporary omendments to tha EBITDA caiculation used to 1est its leverage
covenant, which take inlo account the impact of reduced trading. Under this amended agreement the

Group complied with its nat leverage covenant throughout the period.

The net leverage covenont specifically focuses on the draown senior debt of the Group so excludes

shareholder loans and finance lease ligbilities (refer to note 19).

The cash bakance wied for leveiage covenant testing excludes the cash balance held by subsidiaries outside

of the banking group of £65.8m at 27 March 2021 [2G20: Nil).

Net debt for covenant purposes at 27 March 2021 was £310.3 milion {£358.0 million of senior debt plus £47.4
million of revolving credit faclity net of cash [excluding escrow] of £117.1 milion]. This was £13.0 miflion higher
than the pricr year ending baolance of £297.3 miliion,

Cosh

with spacilic productions, The Group <iso had addilional availoble revolving facilities of
£5.6 million {2020: £5.6 milion). The coash balance increased by £46.4 milion in the period,

while freely available coash increased by £52.7 milion.

£m

For the 52 week
perlod ended
27 March 2021

Operating cash flows {108.5
Invasting cash flows (133}
Financing cash flows 170.2
Net cash flows 48.4
Impact of foreign exchange (2.00
Movement in cash balance 454

Sorvaitivihe intarmal | lea

As at 27 March 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £185.4 million {2020:

£139.1 million). including escrow accounts which are held for use primarity in connection




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Boowings  Tha Group has total available bank facilities of £433.0 milkon, of which £5.46 milion remains
undrawn at the perod end,

The senior debt iy secured by o debenture over the majority of the assets of the Group.
The senior faciities agreement dlso requiras the Group 1o comply with certain covenants,
As at 27 March 2021, the Group was in complionca with s covenants.,

The Group aisa has loans from its sharehclders totaling £139.2m, including accrued interest
{2020: ENil). Interest on shareholder loans 5 non-cash paying and accrues at fixed rates
ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%,

The Group has a finance lease credifor of £166.1 million {2020: £177.2 mifion}.

The maturity of the dabt is shown i notes 19, 20 and 28 to the financidl statements,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent fo the period end, fhe Group completad Tha ocquisifion of Naderander Ostroif LLC and
Braoadwoy San Francisco LLC for total consideration of £173.9 miliion. This acquisition adds two theatres in San
francisco andg three in Detroft to the Group's porifolio of owned and operated verves.

Subsequeni to the period end the Group received £5.4 million of COVID- 19 related government grant ncome
from the German govemmenl,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong fundamentals that underpin the theatrical industry combined with the quality of our portfolio of
venues contribute to the Directors' confidence in the long temm growth of the business in future years. In order
to withstond the curent challengas of COVID-19, the Group will continue to judiciously monitor its cost base
and preserve and protect its lquidity position whilst ensuring that we are adequately preparad for a speedy
return to operations,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPCRT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORAIE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the imporance of its erwironmenial responsibiliies. monitors s impact on the
environment, and designs and implements appropriate pelicies to minimise any damaoge that might be

caused by the Group's activities.

The Gioup seeks to reduce the environmental impact of its operations through responsible resource
procurement and consistently thrives to eliminate waste with our supply chain partners. Specifically, we are
driving elficient energy procurement, diverting all of our woste from landfil and where possible, installing
energy afficient systems in our verwes. As an organisation our environrnental impact is a key pillar of our
overarching Coarparate Sodiai Rasponsibility strateqy.

The closure of the Group's vanues throughout the year coused the mgjority of its ongoing environmental
impact initiatives to be paused, However, tha closure of alf venues and offices has in itself raduced tha Group's

environmental impact,
Greenhouse Gas Reporfing

The Group is required by the Componies Act 2004, Reguiations 2013 to measure and reports Its direct and

indirect UK greenhouse gas emissions.

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are from sources hat are owned or conirolled by the Group. Indrect
greenhouse gas emissions are from sources owned or controlled by other entities but are o consequence of

the qctivities of the Group.

The methodology used to caiculate emissions s based on the Greenhouse Gas Protocaol’s comporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard approach, The UK govemment conversian facter guidance [YDEFRA")

was used to calculate emission factors.
Grasnhouse gas reporting is split between three categories. The explangtions for thase are as follows;

Scope 1: Direct emissions controlled by the Group. This includes gas and &il used for heating as well as emissions

from company cors {bath owned ond leased;.
Scope Z: Indirect emissions exciusively composed of purchased electricity within the Group.

Scope 3 Indirect emissions which occur at sowrces which are not owned ar controlled by the Group and
which cre not classed as scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions from rental vehicles where the Group
purchased the fuel.

Sensitivity: Internal Lise




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Absolute UK carbon emissions (lonnes of COg Year ended 27 March 2021
SCODB 1 i S 2.035.86“
Scope 2 254,87
Scope 3 792
3,000.45
2021
UK carbon intenshy
Tonnes of CO: per £'000 of revenue T 0.14
jonnes of COz: per employee 0.8%
OUR PEOPLE
Number of employees at 27 March 2021 Women Men Total
Directors of the company S 4 5
Other senior management 20 43 43

Employees 2.205 1,791 3.994

The Group complies with ol retevant legisiofion including those specifically targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the requisite policies. The Group
s committed to ensuring the hedlth, safely and weifare of ils employees as for as is reasonably practicobie.
The Group seeks to ensure that statutory duties are met ot of tmes and that it operates effective health and
salety management policies and procedures.

The Group's poiicy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils, meetings and
company-wide surveys, matters likely to affect employees® interests. information on matters of concem to
employess is given through information bulletins and reports which seek 10 achigve a common awarenass on
the part of all employees of the financiai and economic factors affeciing the Group's performance.

The Group continues 1o run its “Be g Star” and "Be a Star Manager” fraining programmes, focusing on Front of
House and 8ox Office staff from when they join the Group, developing their skiis fo improve customer
exporiancea, and further olong the ine, the key aspects of people management. The Group aiso runs 0 wo
year “Rising Star” prograrmme for some of our highest potential junior staff as well as a leadership cowrse for
senior managers “Leading Lights”. in FY20, we laxmched our sixth cohort of Rising Stars, and o third Leading
Lights class.

The Group's policy s to reciuit disabled workers lor thase vaconcies that they are able to fil. All necessary
assistance with initial fraining courses is given. Onca employed. a career plan is deveioped so s tO ensure
suitable opportunities for each disabled person. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for retraining

4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

empioyees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudas
and abllities.

we continue to suppoert nternal sngagement initictives such as International Women's Day. Pride and Mental
Heglth Awaranass waek, with mors people becoming involved in all geographies.

Soclal and Community Involvement

The Group recognises that regional theatres, both In the UK and USA, are rocted in the heart of their local
communities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Creative Leaming departments which take a leading role in
contributing to the sociol cohesion of thelr communities in porinership with charities, trusts and orgonisations
nationwide, including several lacal authorities ond further education partners. Over the course of a year.,
Creqative Leaaming con boast more than 70,000 participants of all ages and abilities throughout the UK.

Peopls of g wide vaniaty of ages and abilities participate in the Groyp's Cregtive Learning activities. Gflen
inspired by the productions at venues, these can include workshops with visiting compaonies, backstoge tours
and pre-show taks, ond clso Youth Theatres, surmmer schools and classes for adults, in addition to this, many
regional venues are used far severol waeks g yaar by local amateur production companies,

On Broadway. the Lyric Theatre hosts an autism friiendly performance of Harry Potter and the Cursed Child,
enlightening more thon 900 children and adults who are diagnosed with an autism spectrum disorder or other
sensitivity issues and their families and friends, Parnering with Theaotrs Development Fund (TDF), slight
adjustments 1o the praduciion have been made so that the show s presentad in a fendly. supportive
envirenment, The Hudson Theatre hosts the 52nd St Project ot a performance of David Byme's American
Utopid. Founded in 1981, the $2nd Strest Prolec! s o communily-based arls organisation, with a mission 1o
bring together kids from Hell's Kitchen in Manhatton with theatre professionals to create ongingl theatre
offered free 1o the general public. Teenagers frem the arganisation's song writing group enjoyed the show
and were defightedly surprised by a "Meet & Greel” with David and the enfire band after the performance.
The evening alio served as a fundraiser for the Project where money raised wolld support the Beloved Non-
Profit Organization.

Sensithvity: Internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT [continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strategic Report has been mrepared solely lo provide information te shareholders to assess how the
directors have performed their duty to promote the success of the Group. The report contains certain forward-
logking statements, which are made by the directors in good faith based on the information available to them
at the time that the report was signed, but are subject 1o the inherent uncertainties underlying any forword-
looking information and as such should be treated with caution.

APPROVAL

This report was opproved and authorised for ssue by the Board of Dractors on 21 July 2021 and signed on #ts

hehdif by
mN—/'

John Oldcom

Director

6
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

§172 Statement

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172{1) COMPANIES ACT 2008

The Bocrd of Directors of Intemational Entertainment Holdings Limited {“IEH") consider, both individudlly and
together, that they have acted In the way they consider, in good faith, would be most fikely to promote the
success of the Company for the banefit of its stakeholders as a whole {having regard 10 the stakeholders and
rmatters set out in section 172(1) (a-1j of the Act} in the decisions taken during the period ended 27 March
2021,

$172(1) A “The likely consequence of any decision In the long term™
The Direclors have taken the decision they helieve best support [EH's strategic ambitions. more information
can be found under ‘Future Developments” on page 5.

3172(1} B “The intecest of the company's employees™
The Diraclors recognise thot IEH employess are fundamental and core 1o our business ond the delivery of our
shratagic ambitions, Maore infommation can be tound under 'Our Peopte' on page 14,

S172{1) C "The need to toster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and othens™

IEH stakeholders are customers, producess, suppliers, employees, shareholders and lenders and the Board
fecognises the need to regulary review the identity of its stakeholders as it maokes decisions. The Board
promotes accountabdity and transparency wilh all stakeholders.

The Company's tundamental beliet in promoting the public good is demonstrated and supported by our
Senior Leadershin’s active engagement cicross industry bodies and our stakeholder cammunity,

The Group hasrecently introduced new customer engagement survays which will determine the Net Promaoter
Score [NPS] of the Group - this process is run by an extemndal compoany to ersure independence. NPS
performance is being reported to the Board on a rnonthiy basis. Although this is a new process, the findings
are being used o improve customer engagement wilth knowledge being shared across all of our business,

An annual employee 'Company Day' delivered in London provides a briefing on the Company's
pefomance and allows individudals to raise questions and concems. The Group monitors ity employee's
commitment $o its guiding framework by asking memiers of senior management to submit an annual
declaration confiming whether they have complied with the Group's Code of Conduct, IF any employee
wishes to highlight any potential breaches to the Code of Conduct, they can contact the independent
whistieblowing services provider and a formal inveastigation follows, wilh anonymaous repeorting to the Audif
Committee. Annudl empioyse angagemenf surveys are performed 1o highlight areas requiring improvement
in communication of the Group's purpose. The Board considers the results of all employae engagement
surveys a good barometer af the workfarce's confidence in the Group's strategic direction, oplimism for the
tuture and career opportunities.

17
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (conlinued )
EOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Payment Practices and Performonce Reporting, both of
which are published extemally, The additional analysis required to conduct this reporting has highlighted some
areas in which the Group needs to improve. The Group welcomes these changes as it seeks o constantly
improve in its engagement with all stakeholders,

$17{1) D "The Impuct of the campany’s operalions on the community and the envionmeni”
The Directors recaognise the importance of its environmental responsibilities. More details can be found undler
‘Environmentol moatters” on page 13,

3172(1) £ “The desirability of the company mainkaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct™
IEH has zero tolerance for madern slavery, bribery and other forms of comuption. We implement and enforce
effective systems 1o counter modem slavery, bribery and cormuption and have inlemal policies in place o
educais our amployess about how to recognise and deal with these issues so as To ensure compliance with
laws,

Wa remain committed to combatting modern slavery, bribery and comuption by:
- Auditing our supply chains:

- Training our stalf to recognise these issues;

- Monitoring potential fisk across our business.

We have a dedicated whistleblowing service for our employees to report misconduct or unethical practices
and have a palicy which clearty sets out how members of staff can raise any concerns which they may have.
Details of our code of conduct and modern siavery can be found on the ATG webxsite:

htips.f S www Qtg.co.ukfatg-modemn-stavery-and-humar-trafficking-statament

$172(1) F “The need to act faidy as between membaers of the company”
Al every Board meeting the Directors review, with the management team. the progress against strategic
priorities and the changing shape of the business porifolio.

This collaborative approach by the Board, together with the Board's approval of the compaony sirategy, helps
it to promote the long-term success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the bockdrop of what it
considers 1o be in the best interest of the long-term financial success of the company and its stakeholders,
including sharehalders, employass, the community and environmernt, our suppliers ond customers,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202t

Princlpal declsions - engaging with stakeholders

As part of the decision making process for the Board, it confinues to have regard for the irnpact of its decisions
on the Group's stakehalders as required under section 172 of the Comipanies Act 2006, The Board takes its
responsibility towards stakeholders seriousty and shives to build ond maintain preductive relationships with
aach of them.

We outline here how we engage with our stakeholders to drive cutcomes.
1. Employees

The Group's long-term success i predicated on the commitment and contribution of its workforce,
Engagement with our employees is essential to meet our strategic godals,

During this year, the Board has had to take the difficutt decision to furlough the majority of the Group's staff
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The use of Govemmeni Job Retention Schemas in the UK and Germany
hgs allowed the Group to avoid, reduce or mitigate redundancies which might otherwise have been required.

Resources have been made available 10 employees 1o support thelr mental health and wellbeing during this
time. The Group has aiso impiemented regular pulse surveys, CEO breakfasts and newsletters to ensure that

employees remain engaged throughout this time.
2. Customers

Customers are central 1o the success of the Group and engagement with our customers allows the Group to
understand their requirements and drive initiatives that seek to consistently improve the customer experience.

Ouring the pariod in which the vanues have been closed. the Group has sought to use this time to plan for ra-
cpening of our venues. In order to ensure thot customers feel confident in retuming 10 our venues. the Group
has implementad reguiar customer surveys 1o better understand what COVID-19 secure medsures customers
are expecting 10 see. The feedback from our customers has been invaluable in delermining our COVID-19

response.

Like many businesses. once COVID-19 resulted in the lockdown of our venues, the Group had a kirge volume
of customer requests 10 manage. To aid our employees and provide better customer service, the Group
implementad a new customer sefvice technology solution and a second customer service call centre to
mancge the influx of customer queries in an efficient and timely manner,

3. Suppliers

Tha Group has g number of long-term supplier pardnerships which are an Impotont part of our business
inciuding in relation ta venuea operations and T Infrastructure,

The Group engages with its supply chain through o variety of mathods inchuding via dedicated relationship
managers, a central procurement function and mest the buyer events, The Group recognises the value of its
supply chain partners and the collaborative approach the Group has 1aken with its supplers dliowed the
Group to respond proactively and pramptly to the impact of COVID-19.

19
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {conlinuved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 201

Dwing 2020, as part of the inttiatives to preserve liquidity, the Group worked with suppliers to adjust its supply

neads.
4. Content Partners

Qur content portiners are key to delivering a successful cusiomer experience. Throughout the COVID-19
Pandermic 1t has been imperdlive thal we engage with our content partners to snswre that there is o plon for
how we dedal with the re-scheduling and cancellation of shows in our venues. We have worked in conjunclion
with our partners to ensure that this has been undertaken in g manner which preserves the customer
relationship. The close working relatiorship with our partners has enabled us to plan for the re-opening of our
venues with a strong content pipelfine due 1o the continued support from our content partners.

5. Communities and the Environment

The Group underslands that il has an impact on communities and we engage with them in a number of
different ways including: local outrgach programmes, creative learning and community partnerships amengst
olhers. As well as having o ceniral creative oulreach furiction, each of aur venues also has its own inifiatives
for community engagement. Due to cur geographic spread across the regions of the UK, North America and
Germany. the Group is able to raspond to the specific needs and oppottunities in each area.

We strive {0 reduce the environmental impact of our operatfions, and those of our supply chain partners,
through the responsible sourcing of resources. Key indtighives Include driving sustainable energy procurement,

instaling more energy efficient systems in aur venues wheraver possible, and diverting all waste frorm landfill.
&. Sharehclders

The Group is In requiar dialogue with Tts shareholders. The Group's shareholders are represented on the Boord
and meet reguiarly throughout the yeor ta discuss the key decisions 1o e made by the Group.

The close working relationship with the Group’s shareholders hos enabled the business 1o focus on ke strateqgic
objectives which have been set by the Board ond focus on long-term opporlunities that meet the
requirements of the shareholders.

7. Bnancial Institulions

The Group regularly meets with its bonks. There is an annual presentalion of the Group's performance., reguiar
interim reporting and presentation of the Group's budget. This has endbied the Group to forge strong relations
with its bankers and given them a betler understonding of the Group's business and its perforrmancs.

A good relationship with the Group’s bonkers has enabled the Group to negotiale o temporary odjustimeant
1o certoin financial covenants during the period when the Group’s venues have had to be closed due to the
COVID-19 restrictions.

20



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued }
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principol decisions made

we outine hare some of the principal decisions made by the Group ond how the directorns have considered
vaniows stakeholders.

1. COVID-19 Measures

The finol month {March) of FY20 was a peried of considerable uncertainty for all busingsses, including ours,
which warronted a respanse 10 the unprecedentad impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. We recognised
quickly that Ihere were likely 1o be significant impllcations of this pandemic on aurselves, as well as ofl other

location based entertainment tusinesses, Our marketing services busingss was oo impactad as many of its
clients are theatricai or location entertairment businesses, like museums and gallefies, By 17 March 2020, we
hod closed all of our venues wordwide, in order to protect show casts and crew members, our employees
and visitors. $ince then, we have diigently folliowed all government guidelines in each relevant geography.

In order to preserve liquidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost bose during the pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken the following medsures:

- created a Businass Continuity Committag, which has been focused on crisis manogement and key
decgion making:

- ongoing engagement with afl our sfakeholders. inciuding our sharenolders and tenders;

-~ implemantation of bi-weekly cash flow forecasts 1o manage liquidity at a granular level thioughout the

Group;
- robus! recpening scenaric modeling to drive decision making;
- proactive management of rescheduting shows to future dates to minimize the levei of show cancellations;

- asgnificant element of the Group's cost base relates to wages and salaries. Where possitle, and subject
to local reguiations, staffing levels and hours worked have been reduced. Employees, including senior
management and directons, have also undertaken salary saoifices, Govemment suppaort both in the UK
in the form of the Job Retention Scheme and in Germany in the form of the Kurzarbeit progrom has been

utllised to offset staffing costs that continue 1o be incured;
- capital expenditure has been rephased and prioritized on essential maintenonce; and

- qctions have been taken 1o defer or permanently reduce payments of Eixed costs and unpaid voriolle
costs from the pre-pandemic period, inciuding agreements with Government fiscal authorities on certain
tax poyments,

21
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

whilst the Board has made dacisions 1o dedl with the immediate impact of the COVID-1% pandemic it has
also made these decisions with regards ta the Group's lenger term strategic objectives, For example, daspite
limits on cash reserves and initiatives to preserve liquidity, the Group hias continved to invest in COVID-19
secure measures that will need 1o be implemented for re-cpening our venues. Invesiment in key strategic
initictives such as T and cyber security have continued.

2. Investrnent in digital copabilities to drive pre-show ond in-verue F&BR

As a customer facing business it is important to continue to evolve to improve customer experience, The
members of the Board were satisfied that the development and roll-out of a new digital food and beverage
sales channal was an important step for the Company to fake to improve the user expernience for our
custorners, The akility 1o order food and beverage on-iine prior o and during your visit would reduce queves
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COVID-19 infection.

3.  Investment in building CAPEX

Despite our initiatives 1o preserve liquidity during the period when our venues have been closed, the Board
has alsc considered # prudent to invest in our bulidings where we con. Undertaking kay repairs and
enhancements, whilst our venues have been closed has enabled us o ensure that we do not have to
postpone or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number of these projects ensure thot we provide a better
axperignce for our customers and content pariners so that they remain safteguarded for the future,

4. iInvesting in diversity and Inclusion

Despite our venues being ciosed, the Board has considered it key to continue o focus on diversity and
inclusion both on and off the stage. Having taken intc account previous work yndertaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Board has considered it important to expand upon the inliclives already undertaken.
improving the divenity of voices within the Group will enhance the longer term success of the Group as o
whole.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthony 3all. Non-Executive Direclar

Anthony Ball served as Chairman of International Enterfainment Holdings Limited from December 2014 to April
2021 aond remains on the board as a non-executive director. He has been g senior advisor of Providence Equity
Partrers sinca 2013, He has had a leng and successful cargar in the meadia ond antertginment industries in the
UK and internationally, as chairman of Kobsl Deutschiand frorm 2005 ta 2013 ond as CEQ of 85kyB. fhe (argeast
pay-TV broadcaster 'n Eurppe. Prior to this, he was the CEQ of the News Comporalion/Liberty Media joint
venture, FoxfUberly Nelworks, which included the FX Networks, Fox Sports Nel and over 20 regional sporls
channels throughout the US. He i a hon-executive director of BT Group ond chaiman of Portland
Communications. Anfhony received a MBA from Kingsion University and has been awarded honorary

doctorates fram both middiesex University and Kingston University.
Mark Comell, Chief Execufive Officer

Mark Comell was appointed Group CEQ of the Ambassador Thegtre Grou In May 2014, Pricr o this he was
Marnaging Director of Sotheby’s Eurcpe and preceding that, spent 10 yedrs ot LYMH, including President and
Chief Executive Officer of Moel Hennessy USA and Chief Executive Officer of Krug Champagne. Mark has
vast expedience in managing large organisations. as wel as successfully leading consumer-orientated brards
in the UK, Europe and the USA.

Stephen Evans, Non-Executive Director, Stiver Lake Partners

Stephen Evans jained Siiver Lake in 2008 and is a Managing Drectar. Mr. Evans serves on the board of
Ambassador Thealre Group [ATG]. Endeaver and TEG. He is a member of the oudit commiflees of City
Football Group and UFC. He qlso previously served on the boards of Ancestry.com and Serena Software, Inc,
Prior to joining Silver Lake, Mr. Evans was a Principal at Cognetas, a pan-European private equity frm, where
he focused on transgctions across business and information services. Previously, Mr, Evans spent five years at
8ain & Company, based both in Europe and the U.S., iIncluding two years in 8ain's private equity group. He s
a member of the executive board of the £ Rasearch Foundation, which is dedicated ta finding g cure for
Epidermolysis Bullosa, a rare children's disaase. Mr. Evans holds on MA. and an M.Phil fram Cambridge
University, and an M.B.A. from Horvard Business School.

David Leigh, Non-Exec ulive Director

David Leigh jained the nternational Entertainment Holdings Limited baard o5 o non-executive director in
Cciober 2015, He is CEO at Alexander Mann Solutions, a role he has held since Novernber 2019, Prior to
joining Alexander Monn, David was CEC of Study Group, and prior 1o that was CEO of SHL. Prior 1o SHL, he wos
on the Execulive Committee of Groupe Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Qutsourcing. David's
earfier background was mn private equity {iFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldmon Sachs, General
Atlantic Fariners and the Boston Consulting Group). consulting (McKinsey & Co) and iaw [Hefibert Smith),
David has an MA in Sociol and Polifical Sciences from Cambridge University and o post-graduate legal
qudiification from the Collegs of Low, London.
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Alexander Mishenin, Non-Execulive Direclor, Providence Equily Fariners

Alexander Mishenin is a vice prasident based at Providence Equity Partners. Prior to joining Providence in 2016,
wAr. Mishenin worked as an analyst in the investment banking group at LP. Morgan in London, Mr. Mishanin
received a Masters in Finance and Law from Dusenberg School of finance and o Bachelor of Business
Informatics from the Higher School of Economics, Moscow.,

Jonathan M. Nelson, Executive Chalrman, Providence Equity Partners

#Ar. Nelson was appointed Chairman of intemational Enterdainment Holdings Limited in April 2021, Mt N&lson
is executive chairman and founder of Providence Eguity Pariners, the world’s leading private equity fim
focused on media, communications, education and information investments. The fern manages funds with
$£45 billion in commitments and has invested in more than 170 companies globdlly since its nception. Mr.
Nelon serves on the boord of directors of Ambassader Theatre Group and The Chemin Group. He has also
served as g director of numerous other Providence porfolio companies, inciuding Bresnan Communications,
Ercom ple, Hulu, Language Line, MetroNeat fnow ATAT Canada]. MLS Media, Univision, VoiceStream Wiraless
[row T-Mobile US), wamer Music Group, Western Wireless Corporation [now ATAT Com} and Yankses
Ententainment and Sports Network (YES).

M. Nelson has been g private equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence in 1989, Previowsly, he
was a managing director of Naraganset Capilal, Inc. which he jomed in 1983, At Narragansett Capital, Mr.
Neson specidlized in private equilty invesimenis in media. Mr, Naelion received a Master of Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School in 1983 and < Bachelor of Arts trom 8rown University in 1977,
He is a tnstee of Brown University, The Rockefeller Universily and Instifute for Advonced Study. He is a member
of the Baord of Deon's Advisons of Harvard Business School.

John Oldcorn, Chlef Financlal Officer

John Cldcom was appointed as CFO of Infernational Entertainment Holdings Limited on 1 July 2021, Prior to
this Jobn spent three years os the Group CFO of Argent Foods, a £750m tumover conglomerate of food-related
business. At Argent he oversaw reiationships with ienders ond other key stakeholders, played akey role inthe
graup navigating successfully through the pandemic, and led four debt raises / refinancings, and significant
Corporate and M3A activily, Prior 10 joining Argent in 2018, Jobn spent 25 years working in professional
practice with Arthur Andersen. Deloitie and, Iatierly, KPMG, the last 16 years as a portner. He co-led the
creation and rapid growth of a dedicoled, multi-disciplinary, private equity practice serving giolal PE clients
ond their portfolio companies across Europe, typically in a fast-paced M&A environment,
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George Osborne, Non-Execulive Director

Gaorge Osborne joined the board of IEH as a non-gxeculive director in Aprit 2021, He is a pariner at Robey
Warshaw LLP. Prier to his cument rales, Gearge was an MP for sidean years, the Chancellor of the Excheguer
(2010-2016) and First Secretary of State (2015-2016). and edited the London Evening Standard from 2017-2020.
George i chalr of the not-for-profit Northern Powerhouse Partnership and ¢ Lecturer at Stanford University,
Califomid. In 201 4 he was made a Comparion of Honour by Her Majesty the Queen.

Robert Sudo, Mon-Execudive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Robert Sudo Is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is also a director of Bifé, Closer Still Media,
HSE24, Masmovil ond LoCentrale. Pror to joining Providance Equity Poriners in 2004, Robert worked os an
analyst for Goldman Sachs in mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance. He received o Diploma in
Business Administration frorm HHL Leipzig Graduate School of Management,

Andrew Tisdale, Nan-Execulive Director, Providence Equily Partners

Andrew Tisdale iz a Senior Managing Director and Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Pariners, He is
aiso a Director of Chime Communication, Closer Still Medio, HSE24, TES Global and Mode4.  Prior to joining
Pravidence Equity Portnens in 2008, Andrew was giobal co-head of the media and communications group
and a member of Morgan Staniey's management committee for investment banking. Ancdrew received a
Moster of Businass Adminisivation from the University of North Caroling at Chapel Hill and a Bachelar of Arts
from Vanderkilt University, He currently serves an the Space Ihnovaltion Council at the Califomia institute of
Technology and. the Board of Advisors for the Yale Schaol of Drama, and Vanderoilt University's College of
Arts and Sciences.

Micho#l Vervlsch, Non-Execulive Director, Providence Equily Partners

Michaél Vervisch s a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He s also a director of Noded, Mr
Yervisch originally joined Frovidencs in 2014, In the past he worked as a principal ot Clayton Dubilier & Rice,
os an associale director at K Investment Portners and 0s an assecicte at McKinsey & Company. Mr. Vervisch
receivad a Master of Business Adminisiration from Harvard Busingss Schod ond holds a Master of Scisnce in
Electrical Engineering and a Master of Science in Applisd Economics from the Kothofieke Universiteit Leuven
in Belghum.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report and the audited financial stalements for the pericd ended 27 March 2021.
The directors consider the annual repaort and frnancial statements $o comply substantially with all aspects of
the "“Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity”.

DMRECTORS

The directors who sarved during the period and to the date of signing the financiol siotements [except os
nated) were;

Anthony Ball

Mark Comell

Stephen Evans Appointed & October 2020
Sinisa Kenic Resigned & October 2020
David Leigh

Alexander Mishernin Appointed 6 October 2020

Jjonathan Nelson Appointed 27 Aprl 2021
John Oldcom Appointed 1 July 2021
George QOsborne Appointed 27 April 2021
Robert Sudo

Shansiae Teo Rasigned 1 July 2021
Andrew lisdale

Michaoel Vervisch Appointed 6 Oclober 2020

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on page 23 ta 25.

The Group is majority owned by Providence Equity Partners fhrough its investment funds, Providence Equity
Partners V1l-A LP and Pravidence VIl Global Holdings LP. Providence Eguily Parlners is a global alternative
investment firm establisned In 198% focused on education, media, communications, and information
investments. The firm's private equity platform specialises in sectos-focusad buyout transactions and growth
capilal investments. Providence Equity Partners made its investmant in the Group through IE Luxco S.éurl.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continved)

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directars which were

made during the period and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the period after taxation amounied to £13%.0 million [2020: £25.% milion).

No dividends have been pald during the curent period {2020; ENil). Mo dividends are proposed inrespect ta
the current peried.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT {continved)

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the impact of COVID-1? on the Group’s krading
continues o be gssessed and is subject 1o rapidly changing extemal factors, ncluding evolving government
responses to control the spread of the vinus and ongoing changes in customer senfiment 1owards attending

live entertainment events.

Due 1o the meaqsunes token by govemments worldwide to control the COVID-1? outbreck, the five
enterdtainment industry came Yo a standstill from the second hait of March 2020, with all our venues being
closed for operations.

Priar to mid-smarch 2020, the Group had traded well with o programiming schedule of highly successful shows
supporting strong operafional performance across all of its teritories. We were in o strong financicl position
with all covenants under the terms of our loans being met. Unfortunately, the closure of our venues hos resulted
in Qsharg drop in tumover, Our marketing services businesses are alse experiencing a drop in fumover as many
of our customers are in the live enterdainment and cultural & heritage sectors [museums, galleries, zoos); all of
which have had restrictions on their operations during COVID-15. Whilst there has been a corresponding
reduction in variable cosjs as a resull of the closure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund its
fixed cost base.

in order to preserve iquidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken a number of measwres os set out on page 21 of this report.

The Group has net cumrent liabilities of £63.4 million [2020: £168.7 million) and net assets of £461.1 miliion [2020:
£49.0 milion} at the period-end date. Net currert liabilities include gdvanced ticket sales of £113.8 million
(2020: £142.4 milionj. These represent ticket sales for shows that have yet to mature, with o porlion of this
amount due Yo flow 1o the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales and nonsefundable granis, 1he Group hias
liabilities due within one year of £144.2 milion (2020: £187.0 milion} which are exceeded by current assets of
£227.7 mition, {2020: £206.5 million}.

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts, inlts bank accounts of £132.7 million s
at the reporting dote. in addition, the Group has received an equity commitment from its shareholders, which

is presently undrawn.

The Group operates and robust, bi-weekly cash and cash flow forecasting process cavering the period to 31
December 2022,

Sersitivities are run to reflect different scenarios for when theatres might or will be able to re-open in the months
following the dote of the approval of these financial statements. This is done to identify risks to iquidity and
covenant compliance and enable management to formulate apprepriate and fimely mitigation strategies.

Thase sensitivitias include severe, but plousible, downside scenarios.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Based on these forecosts and other faciors which may impact the Group's fulure liquidity puasition, the
Directors have concluded that it is appropricate to prepare the fimancial statemeants on a golng concem basis,

The reasons for this are as follows:

-~ The Group holds £433.0 million of cammitted fachities which are subject to nel leverage and figuidity
covenarts. There is g educed risk of default on the net leverage covenant, due fa ¢ facility amendment
which allows for an adjustment to the net leverage covenant whilst theatres are closed by governments
due to COVID-19 and dwing an agreed ramp up periad post re-opening. The Group is also subject to a
minimum lquidity covenant which s forecast 1o be met for the next 12 monkhs; and

- Adeguate liquidity s in place for the next 12 monihs based on the foreseeable scenarios for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates, potential restictions on how our venues can opgrate [i.e. social distancing
requiraments), and the lavel of demand from audiences, At present, govemment policy onregpening of
theatrical venues and social distancing requiremants varies acrass the countries and regians thal the
Group operatesin.

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its ablity o manage its iquidity requirements. confidence in
the continued swuppor of our sharerolders, and the long term potential of the bsiness forms the bosis of our
preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (conlinved)

MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Cerloin matters (post balance sheet events, fulure developments, prncipal risks and wncertainties and
smployee matters) are discussed within the Strategic Report and incarporated into the Directors' Report by

refarence.
AUDITOR
Fach of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

- 3o for as the director s aware, there is no ralevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is

unowars, ard

- he diracior has taken all the steps that hefshe cught to have taken as a dirgclor in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to estabish that the Company’s auditor s
aware of that infarmation.

This confimation s given and shouid be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Componiles Act 2008,

Delqitte LLP hove expressed their wilingness tc continue in office as auditor and aresolution to reappoint them

will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved and qutharised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and signed on its
tbehgif:

Y

John Qkdcorn

Director

Registered oflice
28 $t. George Street, London
W15 2FA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The diractors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statéments in accordance

with apglicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors 10 prepare Fnanclal statements for each finoncial period. Under that jow
tha directors have elected to prepcore the inancial statements in accordance with Infemational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial staterments unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the stale of
affoirs oF the Company and of the profit of loss of the Cormpony for that period, In preparing these finonciol
statemenits, intarnational Accounting Standard | requires that directars:

- propery select and cpply accounting policies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

- provide additional disclosurss when complionce with fhe specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
1o enabie usears 1o understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the entify's financial posifion and financial performance; and

- make an assessment of the Company's abllity o conlinue as a going concern.

The directors are respansible for keeping ndequale accounting records that are sufficiant 16 show and explain
the Company's transactions and disClose with reasonable accuraey af any fime the financial position of the
Company and enable therm to enswve that the financial stafements comply with the Comparies Act 2004
They are olso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hences for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of froud and cther irregularities.

The directors are responsible For the maintenonce and infegrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website, Legisiation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisialion in other jurisdiclions,

We confirmi that to Ine best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevanf financial reporting ramework,
give a rue and falr view of the ossets, icbilities, financial position and profit o kass of the Company
and the underakings incivded in the consolidation taken as a whole:
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (continued)

- the Strategic Report ncludes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation kaken as a whoie,
together with a descrption of the pancipal risks and uncedainties that they face; and

- the annudi report and financial statements, taken os a whole, are fair, balanced ond undentandable
and provide the Information necessary for shareholders to ossess the Group's performance, business
model and strategy.

This responsibilty statement was opproved by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and is signed on its behalf

Sllo— |

Johrn Oldcorn
Dirrector
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financlal stalements

Oplnion

lnl:ur opinion the finenciat statements of Intermational Entertainment Holdings Uimited {the ‘oarent company’y

and its subsidiaries (the "group’):

s give afrue and foir view of the stote of the group's and of the parent company’s offairs as ot 27 March
2021 and of the group’s foss for the year fhen ended,

+« have been properly prepored in accordancea with intemational accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Campanies Act 2004.

We have audited the financial statemenits which compxise:

the consolidated statement of comprehensive incoms;
= the consolidated and company statements of inoncidl position;

the corsolidated and cornpany statements of changes in equity:
« the consolidated statement of cashfiows: and
« therelated notes 1 to 33.

The financial reparting framework that haos been applied in their preparationy is opplicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companias Act 2006.

Basis for apinlon

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Intemational Standords on Auditing (UK} [ISAs {UK)) and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibiifies
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant 1o our audit of the financial stoterments in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the
'FRC's") Ethicol Standard. and we hove fulliled o other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirernents. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 16 provide
a basts for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ yse of the going concern basls of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropnate.

Qur evaluation of the directors' gssessment of the group’s and parent compaeany's ability to continue to adoapt
the going concem basis of accounting included:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

s an assessment of the entities financing faciities including nature of facilities, repayment terms and
covenants,

+  areview of managemeant's forecasts, including challenging management's key assumptions such s the
reopening dates of theatres, the accupancy levels, the base level of operating costs, the cash flow to
achieve re-opening, and the refund rate on advanced sales;

= an assessment aver the amount of headroom in the forecasts {cash and covenants) on a base case ond
under managemaent’s sensitivity analysis of an extended dark pericd or a reduction in occupancy rates;
and

« review over the model used to prepare the ferecasts, testing of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and
our assessment of the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management.

Based on the work we have perfonmed, we have not identifled any material uncertainties relating to events
ar condlitions thal, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent
company’s ability ta continue as a going concem for a petiod of at least twelve months from when the

financial staterments are authorised for issue.,

Qur responsibilites and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to geing concem are describad in thea
ralevant sections of this report.

Othar information

Tha other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements ond our quditor's report thereon., The directors are responsible for the other information conlained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and,
excep! to tha exient otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therean.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and. in daing so, consider whether the olhar information is
materially inconsistert with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such malerial inconsistencies or apparent matericl
misstaternants, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financiol
statements themseives. ¥, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
missiaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regord.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Responsipiiities of directors

As explained more fully in the directars’ resporsibiities statemant, the directors are responshie for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being safisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors delermine is necessary 10 enabie the preparation of financial stafements thaf
are free from materia! misstafement, whether due to fraud or emror.

In preparing the financial stotements, the directors are resporsible for assessing the group's and the parent
company’s ability o continue as a going concem, disclosing. as applicable, matters retated to gaing concem
and using the going cancern basis of accounting urless the dirgctars either intend o liguidate the group of
the parent company or 1o cease cperations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Audilor's responsibilities for the aqudit of the financlal stalements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonablie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are
free Fom materal misstadement, whether due to fraud or error, ond to is5ue an gudiior's report that includes
oY opinion. Reasonoble assuronce is a high level of gsswance, byt s not o guarantee thot an gudit
conducled in accordance with 1SAs [UK] will atways detect o matsrial misstatement when it exish.
Misstatements can arise from fraud aof error and are considered material ¥, individudlly or in the aggregate.
they could reazonabiy be expecied to infiuence the economic decisions of Users taken on the basis of these

finoncial statements.

A furthar descripfion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's

website ot v frC gk i auditourespons ditzs, This descrption forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audlt was considered capabie of detecting imregularities, including fraud

iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and reguiations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilifies, oullined cbove, fo detect matenial misstofements in respect of
ireguiarities, including froud. The exient ic which o procedures are capable of detecting reguigrities,
incluching fraud is detoiled beiow.

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and its cantral environment, and raviewed the group's
documentation of thek policies and procedures relating to raud and compliance with laws and regulations.
We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of iregularities,

We cbtained an understonding of the legal and regulaiory framework that the group operates in, and
idenlified the key laws and reguiations thot:
« had g direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures n tha financiol statements.
These included UK Camparies Act, iFRS, CIRS and tax legisiation; and
+ donot have g direct effect on the financiol statements but comptiance with which may be fundamentol
1o the groups ability to operate or to aveid a material penalty
35

Sensitivity: internal Use



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

We discussed among the audilt engagement team, including significant component audit teams ond relevant
intemoal specialists such as tax, and valuations specialists regarding the opportunities and incentives thal may

exist within the organisation for froud and how and where fraud might occur in the fingncial statements.

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud or non-campliance with lawws
and regulations in the following areas, and cur specific procedures performed to address them are described
below:

« Judgement and estimation. which give rse o the rsk of fravd are reguired in the preparation of
discounted cash flow ['DCF’] models usad to detemmine whether there is an impaiment of goodwdill and
otter assets. The same DCF are appliad to support the camrying value of 1he Group's venues. The fraud
risk arises with the estimates made over the future trading assumptions, specifically the assumed date of
venues fe-opening and the discount rate applied. We have challenged management’s assumplions and
comsidered both supporting or contradictory evidence whilst alse engaging specialist input info the audit
of the discount rate In each region. We have alo considered the appropriatenass of the sensitivities
performed by management and the disclosures thereof,

« The Group has utilised a number of Covid-1? related govemment support schemes. The nature, elgibiity
and complexity of the schemes varles between territories. We identified a fraud risk in relation 1o the
Group's applications unger these schemeas given the complexity and reduced time pericd in which the
schemes were established, speciiically pinpointed to the Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany.
The risk is that amounts ciaimed by the Group could be intentionally, or unintentionally, misstated which
could lead to repayments, fines and reputational damage. We have considered the design and
implementation of the controls managemaent instigated 1o ensure the accuracy of applications and
recording of assisiance received. With the involvement of our specialist team we have iInspected source
dacumentation ond, for a samgle of cloims recalculated ameounts cidimed and troced payments to the
HMRC claims portal and the bank raceipt of funds ensuring consistency with amounts recorded in the
financial stalements. We have also reviewed the disclosures made in respect of government assistance.

In common with alf audits under BAs (UK), we are also required to perfom specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management ovaride. In addressing the risk of fraud through management overide of controis, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumal enfries ond other adjustments; assessed whather the judgements made
in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bigs; ond evaluated the business rationde of
any significant fransactions that are unusual or outside the nommal course of business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

In addition to the above, our procedures to respend 1o the risks identified included the follawing:
* reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting doccumentation to assess compliance
with provisions ol relevant laws and regulafions described as having o direct effect on fhe finoncial

statements;

«  performing analytical procedures o identily any vhusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of materidl misstatement due to fraud;

«  engquiling of management conceming actudl and potential litigation ond claims, and instances of non-
compliance with taws and regulations; ond

o recding minuvtes of meetings of those charged with governonce and reviewing cormespondence with
HMRC.

Repoit on oifher legatl and regulafory requirements

Cpinlons on othat matters prescribad by the Companies Act 2004

In our apinion, based on the work undertoken in the counse of the audit:

+ the information givenr in the strategic repart and the directors’ report for the Rnancial year for which the
financial stafements are prepored is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the shrategic report and the directors' repodd have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requiramants,

in the light of the knawledge and understanding of the aroup and of the parent company ond their
environment obiained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the
strategic repon or the diractors' report.

Maiters on which we are required to repert by exceptlon

Urider ihe Companias Act 2004 wa are reguined to report in respect of the following matters if, n our opinion;

»  adequate accounting records have not been ket by the pareni company, or retums adecrrate for our
audit have not been received from branches nod visited by us: or

+« the parent company financial statemeants dre niol in agreament with the accaunting records and retuns;
or

« cerain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by iow are not mode: or

* we have no! received af the information ond explanations we reauire for our audit.

We have nothing 10 repor nusespect of thasa matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Use of our report

This repaort & made sclely to the compony’s members, as g body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of
the Companies Acl 2004. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state {o the company’'s
members those mottens we ara required lo state te them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsbiily 10 anyong other than the
campany and the company's mermbers as a body, for our audit work, for this repert, ¢r for the opinions we
have formed.,

vy
v

=TT AR
Helen Wildman ACA {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloifte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London

United Kingdom

21 July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note 52 week paricd 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Revenue 3 41,641 478,747
Cost of sales 119,208} 1189,248)
Gross profit 22,433 287 499
Administrative expenses {118,793 {284,575)
Share of results of Gisociates and joint ventures 11 [ 249) {702)
Operating [loss) /profil 4 £94,609) 2,222
Finance income 7 1.546 1.344
Finance costs 8 [54.072) {37.473)
Loss betore tax (147,135) {33,907
Taxation 9 8,183 7.982
Loss for the periad {138,952 {25,925}
Attrioutable fo:
Ownars of the Company {138,252 (25,925)
Compreheansive Income
Loss for the period {138,952) {25.925)
ttems that may be reciassified subseguently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on fransiation of foreign {472 5,195
operations
Hems that will nat be reclassified subsequentiy fo
profit orloss:
Remeagsurements of post-employment benefit 274 24}
ohlig alions
Tolal comprehensive loss for the period {139,170) (20.489)
Aliribuloble fo;
QOwners of the Company [139.170) {20,489)
Total comprehensive loss for the petiod (139,170} (20,489}

Al activity relates to continuing operations.

There are no matendal differences between the losses for the pefiads disclosed above and their historical cost

equivalents, The accomponying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial

statements,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 March 28 march 27 March 28 March
20 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £000

nvestmanrits 10,34 2178 4,356 413,835 262,575
Interests in associates and joint ventures 11,33 3,528 1.519 - -
Goodwil 12 3562.884 372730 - -
intangble assets 12 18,609 16,328 - -
Property, plont and equipment 13 389.47% 430,905 - -
Delered tax ossets 22 17.316 11,567 - -
Mon-currant trade and other receivables 16 22,431 23.318 - -
Non-cumrent assets 816,425 840,723 413.835 262575
inventories 14 505 1,044 - -
investments in shows 15 2,373 3,794 - -
Trade and other receivables 14 39,380 62,554 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 185,432 139065 144 -
Cunent gusetls 227 .6%0 206,457 146 -
Total assets 1044015 1,067,180 413,981 262,575
Trade and other payables 18 189,57 ¢ 260,815 11,046 10,900
Borrowings 19 69.370 62370 - -
Obligations under finonce leases 20 16393 12.474 - -
Provisions 21 15.801 25482 - -
Cumrent Habdlifies 291,135 375,143 11,046 10,900
Net current lloblliies {63.445) [168,687) (10.700) (10.%00)
Borrowings 19 514,037 456,670 - -
Obligations under finance leases 20 149,693 157,704 - -
Delerrad tax iabilities 22 28,198 28.699 - -
Non-cument liablitles 491,928 643,075 - -
Total Habilifias 983063 1018218 11,0458 10,900
Net assels 41,052 48,942 402,935 251,875
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Compaony
27 march 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Shore capital 23 414 262 414 2482
Share crernium account 402,522 251,414 402,521 251,413
Translaticn raserve 26,991 27 4383 - -
Accumulated deficit [368,875) {230,197} - -
Tota) equity affributable to £1,052 48,962 402,935 251,675

owners of the Company

The Company has taken advontage of the exemplion contained within section 408 of 1he Companies Act

2006 not to present its own Statement of Comprehersive ncome and reiated notes. The result for the vear

daalt with in the financial statements of the Company was Enil [2020; £nd),

The financiql statements of were approved by the Board of Dirgclars and authorised for issue on 21 July 2021,

They were signed on its behalf by:

S

Reglstered Number OB7&9974
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

For the 52

week

period
ended 27 For ihe 52 week
March perod ended 28

201 March 2020

£000 £'000
Net cash (used In)/generoted from operating aclivitles 24 (108,528) 62,235
Purchases of property, plant ond equipment {10.389) (40.923)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,353) (13.144)
Nei recoupment from shows L 1,401 1,855
Net cash used in investing acfivilles = (13,351) 152,212)
New shgreholder loans raised 135,000 62,370
Praceeds from share issue 151,280 -
Repayments of bank bomowings (85.500) -
Rapayment of obligations under finance leases 111.054) {18,028)
interest received 1,546 22
Interest paid {20,996} 122,917)
Net cash generatad by linancing activities W _ 170,216 28,447
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 48,339 38,470
Cash and cush equivalents at beginning of period 13%.085 98.956
Net increqse in cash and cash equivalents 48,339 38,470
Foreign exchange {loss) fgain on cash e 1e72) 1,439
Cash and cash equivaients of end of period 17 185,432 139.065

The accompanving notes form part of and are to be read in conjunclion with these financiol statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

General infermation

infernational Entertainment Holdings Umited {fhe “Group™ is a private Company limited by shares,
incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and is registered in Englond and Wales. The
address of the registered office is 28 §t. George Street, London, W15 2FA, United Kingdom.,

The principal activifies of the Carnpony and Hs subsidiaries {the Group) ond the noture of the Group's

operations are sel aut in in the strategic report on pages | o 22,

These fingncial statements are presented in pounds sterfing because that is the currency of the primary

econamic environment in which the group operates.
Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandalorily effective for the curent period

In the curent yaar, the Group has applied amendments to IFRSs issued by the Internctionat Accounting
Standards Beard {1A3B) that are mandatosly effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1
January 2020.

The adoption of these amendments in the year did not have g material impact en the financial stratements.
New and revised IFRSs In Issue buf not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these tinancial statements the Group has nat applied the following new and
ravised [FRSs that have heen issued but are nat yet effective:

Amendments 1o 1AS 1 - Classification of liabilities as curent or Non-current
- Amendments to 1AS 3 - Referance 1o the Conceptual Framework
Amendments to 1AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimotas
- Amendments 1o 1AS 12 —Defered Tox reloted 10 Assets and Liabiities
- Amendments tc IAS T4 — Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before intended use
- Amendments to 1AS 37 - Onieraus Contracts - Costs of fulliling a contract
- Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
- IFRS 16 ~ COVID-1? Reloted Rent concessions
- IFRS 17 - insurance controcts

- Annualimprovernents to IFRS standards 2018 — 2020 (IFRS 1, IFRS 9. IFRS 16, 1AS 41)

The Diractors are cumently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and

interpretations but do not expect them to have a material impact on the Group operation or results
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The finoncial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
standards {IFR3s). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EL IAS
Regulation.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion contdined within section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The profit for the year
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was £l {2020: £nil).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values gt the end of sach reporting periocd, & explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost s generally basad on the (air value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair valve is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a licbiiity in an orderly
fransaction belween market participants ot the megsurement dote, regardless of whether that price is
directly cbservable or estimated using anoter valuation technique. In estimating the fair vatue of on asset
or a liability, the Group takes nto account the characteristics of the asset or liabtlity if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liabiity at the measwrement date.
Fair value for measurement ond/for disclosure puposes in these consolidoted finoncial statements &
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment iransactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2, leasing fransactions that are within the scope of 1AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value. such as ret reclisoble vaiue in 1AS 2 or vaiue in use in 1AS 34,

Operating resulls

The cperating results include trargactions up to and including the Saturday on or preceding 31 march of
each period.

Soyis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial stotements of the Compony and entities
confrolled by the Company [its subsidiaries). Confral is achieved when the Company has the power over
the investee, is exposed, or has rights, fo vaiiable returns from its involvernent with the investee and has the
abilty to Use its power to affect its rehums.

The resuts of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the pedod are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases 1o control the subsidiary.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE INANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERKOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2023

1. Signiticant accounting policles {continued}

Basis of consciidation {continued)

Al introgroup assets and higbilities, equity, ncome, expensas and cosh flows reiating o fransactions
bahween the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interasts in subsicianes are Wentified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those
intarasts of non-controlling shareholders that ore present ownership interests are initicliy measured at the
non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the ocguiree's identificiole net assets.
Subsaguent 1o acquisition, the cammying amount of non-contraling inferests & the amount of those interasts
at intial recognifion plus the non-coniroliing mterests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Business Combinaiions

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit of loss as
incurred,

Goodwil is measwred os the excess of the sum of the consideration ronsferred, the amount of any non-
cankeoling intavest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's praviously held equity interest in the
acquie (i any] over the net of tha ocquisition-date amounis of the identifable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumned.

Contingent consideration is meawred at is ocquisition-date fair value ond included as port of the
consideration fransferred in a business combination. Changes In fair vaiue of the contingent consideration
that qualty as measurement psriod adiustments are adiusted rekuspectively. with coresponding
adjustrments against goodwill. Medsurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtginad duing a maximum period which cannot axceed cone year from the acquisition date
about facts ond circumstonces thot existed of he ocquisition dote, Where changes occur to contingent
consideralion that is classified as an asset or fabiity. that do not quadlify as measurement period adjusiments,
the contingent considerdation is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates with the coresponding gan of
loss being recognised in profit or Yoss. To the extent that the tems of cantingent consideration arangements
include service conditions, consideration is reated as o cost of employment and is recognised over the
pericd 1o which the service conditions reiate.

The Group reports provisional amiounts until the measurement period is completed.
Invasimenis

imvestments in subsidiaries ara valued at cost less provision for impairment.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiicant accounting policles [continuved)

Assoclates and Joinf arangements

An associate is an entily aver which the Group has significant influence and that is nefther a subsidiary nor
an Intergst in a joint vendure, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operaling

policy decisions of the invesias but is not contro! or jsint contral over those policies.

A joint arangement is an arangement of which two or more parhies have joint control, Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arangement, which exists onty when decisions about the
relevant activities (i.e. activities that significantly affect the retums of the arrangame ) require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing contiol. joint arangements are classiied inta tweo types - joint operations and
joint ventures.

A joint operation is g joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e,
joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the avangement. A joint
venture i g joint arangemment whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement (i e. joint
ventures) have rghts 1o the net assets of the arangement. The type of joint arangement is assessed by
consideting its rights and okligations, by considering the structure ond legal form of the anrdangement, the
confractudl terms agreed o by the parties to the arangement and, when relevant, other facts and
circumstances.

The assets and liabilties {ond related revenues and expeanses) of icint operations are recognised in propaortion
to the interest in the arangement.

The resuits and assets and tiabiities of associates ond joint ventures are incomorafed in thase finoncial
staternants uwsing the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, aninvestiment in an asseciate
is initiglly recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position at ¢ost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive Income of the associate, When
the Group's share of losses of on associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate {which includss
any long-term interests that, in subsiance, form part of the Group's net irwestment in the associate], the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further [0sses. Addticnal losses are recognised only 1o the extent
that the Group has incured legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amontised but is reviewed for impaiment af least armually.

For the purpose of impaiment testing, goodwil is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
[CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cashrgeneroating units to which goodwill
has been allocoted are tasted for impairment annually, or more frequentty when there is an ingication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its camying
amount, the impaimaent loss is allocated first to reduce the carmying amount of any geodwil dliecated 1o the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amount of each asset in the
urit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed In a subsequent period,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signilicant accounting policlas {continved)

Goodwill (continued)

Prior to the cument year the Group's two German subsidiaries, BB ond Mehr. were trected os separate CGLs.
This policy has been changed 1o recognise BB and Mehr as one combined Mainiand Europe CGU, dligning
the CGUs to the monagement's divisional view of the Group's activities.

Impalkrment of non-cumrent assets

At egch boiaonce sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amaounts of its fangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assels have suffered on impairment loss, Goodwill is
reviewed for impdirment at leqst annually.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated, af acquisition, to the cash generating Units of
group of uhits thot are expeacted 1o beneht from that business combination,

An impairment loss s recognised if the camrying amount of the asset under consideration exceeds its
recovarabie amount. Recoverabie aomount & the higher of fair volue less costs of disposal and volue in use.
in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their present volue using a
discount rate thal refiects curren! market assessments of the me value of moneay and tha dsks specific o

the asset.

if the recoverable amount of the cash-generaling unit is less than the carving amount of the unit, the
impairment loss s alocated first 1o reduce the canylng amount of any goodwill and than to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the canying amount of each assel in the unit, An impaiment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reverned in O subsequent period.

investmants in shows and co-production arangements

Investmeants in shows are stated at cost less amounts recouped 1o date, and provisions for any amounts

which the diractors do not believe ore recoverable.

Production arrangements are reviewed on a production-by-production basis and freated based on the
principles ocutlined above as either a subsidicry, an associale or joint venture or joint amangement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {continued)

Froperty, piant and equlpment

Froperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less deprecialion and accumulated impairments.
Depraciation Is provided at rates calcuiated to wiite off the cost of fixed assets, lass their estimated resicual

value, on a straight-line bass over their expected useful lives as follows:

Freghold buildings 4010 50 years
Leasshold property Shorter of leasehold lerm and useful ife of 40 to 50 vears
Fixtures and fitfings 410 10 years, or gver the pericd to the end of the lease of the theatre

if this is shorter
IT Equipment 3to Syears

No depreciation i applied to the cost of assets in the course of constnuction. Freehold land i not

depreciated.
Intangible aisels

Intangible assets all have finite Ives ond are cared at cost less accomuiated amarlisation and
occumulated impgirment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basis over thoir estimated

usefyl lives and is recognised in the administrative expenses line item.

The omodisation period for software is 4 years. The estimated life of other intongible assets is considered on
on aszet-by-asset bosis and is up 10 10 years.

Inventory

inventary is valued at the lower of cost and net realisabie value after making due dlowance for obsolete

ond slow-moving itemns.
Financlal insirumenls

Financial assets and finonciol liobiities are recogrised in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are initiclly measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attibutable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial licbilties. other than financial gssets and financial liabiities at fair value fhrough profit or loss
[“FVTPL"), are added to, or deducted kom. the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabiltias on initial
recognition. Tronsaction costs directly athibutable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recognised immediately in prafit or loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounling policies {conlinved)

Financial instruments (continved)
Cash ond cash eqguivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash bolances, colt deposils ond escrow-type accounts. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integrat part of the Group’s cash management are
included os a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of cash flows,

Trade receivables ond occrued income

Trade receivables and accrued income are classified as loans and receivables ond are megswed at
omortised cost using the effective inferest method, less any impoirment. Since frade receivables and
accryed income are typically due within one year, and the effect of any effective interest is immaterial, this
edquates to initial canying volue less any impeirment.

Barowings

Loans and Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Thay are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an
eftective yield basis. The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocated interest expansa over tha relevant period. Tha effective interast rate is the rate that
exoctly discourts estimated future cash poyments through the expected life of the financial labilty, or,
whers appropriate. a sharter pericd 10 the net carmying amaount on initic recognition.

Jrade payabfes and accrudals

Trade payables and accruals are ciassified os loans and receivables and are measured at amaortised cost
wsing the effective interest method. Since rode payables and accruals are typically due within one year,
and the effective of any effective interest is immaterial, this equates 1o initicl camying vdue.

Fnanciol guarantees
Financial guarontee confracts are accounted for as Insurance contracts.
Defored income

Amounts received by the Graup for services perfarmed in fulre are classified as defermred income and
recognised in the Corsolidated Statement of Comprehensive income when the service is performed.

Retirerment benefits

fFayments fo defined conirbution retement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
smployees have rendered servica enfiting themn to the confributions. Differences betwaen conthibbufions
payable in the period and contributions actually paid ore shown as gither accrucls or prepayrnents in
tha alance sheet,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting policles {conlinved)

Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the far value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the nommai course of business, net of discounts,

VAT and other soles-related taxes. Revenue for the Group comprises severat elements, including:
Venue rentl rind produc tion-refated senvices

Charges to productions in respect of services provided [such as venue rental and staffing) cre recognised
net of sales taxes as those services are provided.

Revenue from production-relaled services is recagnised ot the dote of perfarmance of the show, until
which fime it is held on the Statemen! of Finoncial Position as Deferred Income.

Promotional services

The Growgo acts Qs pramoter for self-produced shows and shows produced by third parlies. Revenue from
these services is recognised af fair value of cansideration received, net of sales faxes, at the date that the
promofional services are provided.

Marketing services
Revenue from the provision of marketing services is recognised of the fair value of the consideration

received of receivable. The fair value of consideration takes into account trade discounts, seftlement
discounts and volume rebates. Marketing services revernue is recognised net of sales 1axes over the peried
that services are provided, or as recoverable costs are incured, in accordonce with the lenms of the
contractual agreement. When recorded marketing services revenue exceeds the amounts invoiced o
clen), the excess s clawsifled as accrued income.

Ticket sales

Revenue from licket soles raprasents the revenue eamed from commissions, credit card charges and
similar charges. This revenue is recognised ol the date the ticket is sold.

Revenue from tickel sales where the Group is acling as seling agent fwhether for its own theatres or for
other UK venues} includes booking fees. commissions, and similar additionatl income charged ot the point
of sale. These amounts are recognised net of any sales taxes ot the kargaction date. Such revenue is
recogrised as an agent rather than principal transaction, and s excludes the face value of the hckets
sold.

Redail sales

Revenue from concession sates 10 ciustomers al the Group's venues is rec ognised net of sales taxes at the
paint of sale.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (continuad)

Revenve {continuved)

Other revenue

The Group provides varous ofher services on anad hac basis, ol of which are related to ifs principal aclivity.
Relcted revenue is recognised at fair value over the pericd that such services are performed and the

perfarmance obligations ors mat,
Joint cperations

in relation 1o co-production arangaments, whera ¢ controliing or joint aparation interest is held, revenue
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no contralling mterest i held fumover
represents net income from productions. Where equity gecounting & applied, the share of profit or loss is
disclosed in the “share of resuits of associates and joint ventures” line.

Governmant gronts

Income from government grants is recognised as deferrad income and released to the Consclidated
Stalerment of Comprehensive Income as the attached conditions are satisfied, Where the grant reiates ta
procurement of an assel, the amount received B reledsed to the Corsolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income aver the useful ife of the asset against associoted depreciation.

A material gront related fo assets s presenied in the statement of financial position as a deduction from
the camying value of the related asset, with a consequent reduction in the annual charge for depreciation,

COVID-19 relgted job retention schemes are considered within the scope of 1AS 20, with furlcugh receipts
recorded as a reducthian in payroll expensas.

IFRS 14 Legses

The Group recognises aright-of-Use asset and d lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset 5 initiclly measured at cost, which compiises the initial amount of the legse liobiity adiusted ftor
any lease payments mode atf or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incured.

The right-of-use asset is sulbsequently deprecioted Using the stroight-ine method from the commencement
date, The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property, piant ond equipment,

The lease fiabiiity fs mifially measwred af fhe present vaiue of the ease payments that are nof paid ot the
commencemant date, discounted wsing the Group's ncremental borowing rate. The lability 8 suksequently

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease likability resuifing from reassessments or lease madifications.

The Group presents right-of-use assets In ‘property, plant and eguipment® and lecse liabilities in “finance
leases' in the statement of finoncict position,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOCD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (confinuecdi]

Short-term leases and leases of low.value assefs

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liobilities for short-term leases of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assels. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these legses as an expensa on a slralght-line basis over the lease term.

Forelgn cumrencles

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group
Company are expressad in pounds steding. which i the functional curency of the Compony, and the
prasantational curency for the consolidatad financial statemeants.

Monetary assets and iqbiliies denominated in foreign cumencies are transiated into sterling at rates
of exchange ruiing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are fransiated into stering
at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Such exchonge gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses on loans that are effectively investment insiruments, such as where o
parent Company makes a loan with no repayment terms to a subsidiary holding Company as port of
acquisition consideration. are recognised in other comprehansive income.

Resulls of overseas subsidiaries are franslated at average monthly rates. Assets and liabilities of overseas
subsidianies are transiated at the rote ruling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arksing
are recognised in the transkation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Opwarating profit

Operating profit is stoted after the share of resulls of associates but before finance income and costs, other
gains and losses and taxes.

finance Income

Finance income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is earned.
Finance cosh

Finance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period inwhich they arg incumed.
Other gains and losses

Otner gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the pericd in which they are incured.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE HNANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202

1. Significant accounting pelicies (confinued)

Fre-Production relcted cosis

Expanses incured prior to a production going lve which are directly attibutabide to e production of the
shaw are categorised into either property plant and equipment and depreciated over the assumed useful
life of the show, or ‘Other non-tangible assets’, which are released to the Profit and Loss over the show's
useful Ife posed upon the ratio of the curent period's revenues to the estimated total revenues (Total
Preduction Revenue) tor eqch production. Wherg estimates of Total Producticn Revenue decreases.
amortizotion of preproduction costs may be accelerated. Conversely, it estimates of Tolal Production
Revenues were to increase then amartization of costs may be slowed,

Taxation
The {ox expense reprasents the sum of the tax cumantly payable ond defered fax.

Current ond defemed tax are recognised in profit o Ioss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other ¢ cmprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and defemred tax
are dlso recognised in ofher comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where cumrent fax or
defemed Yax anises from the initic! accounting for a businass combinotion, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Current fax is based on taxable profif for the period calculaoted using tax rafes that have heen enccted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Detarred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assefs ond fabilties
in the consolidated financial statemants and the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, Deferred tax liabilities are generdlly recognised for oli taxable temporary differences,
Deferred tax assets are gererally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it s
probable that taxable profits will be avalahle agoinst which those deductible temporary differences caon
be utilised,

Such deferred tax assets and lohifities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initikal
recognition of goodwill. from the initiol recognition (other than in o business combination) of assets ond
iabilities in a fransaction that alfects neither the taxabie profit nor the accounting profit of invesiments in
subsidiaries and associates, and inferests in joint ventwres, where the Group is able to confrol the reversal of
the temporary differenca and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable
futyure, The amount of defered tax provided i based on the expected manner of reaiisation or settlerment
of the comying amount of assets and liabilities, using tox rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
financical perod end date, A deferred tax csset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxoble profits will be avallable agoirst which the osset con be utiised.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or consiructive] as a result of o
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to setile that obligation ond a refiable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation vncedalnty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in nale 1, the Directors are
required o make judgements, eslimates and assumplions about the carrying amounts of assets and
Yabiiities tho! are not readily apparent from ofher sources.

The estimates ang associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered o be relevant. Actua! results may ditfer Fom these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are raviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
aslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate i revised If the revision offects only thal period,
or in the peviod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both curent and future pesiods.

Judgemenis
Going concern bosis

In order to assess whether it is appropriate for the Group 1o be reported as a going concem, the Directors
are requined to make judgements regarding the Group's future trading performmance, cash generation ond
ability to satisty its financial abligations. Having undertaken appropriate enquiries and having considered
the business activities and the Group's principal risks ond uncertainties. the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepared on a going concem basis. Please refer to the Directors' Report for our detailed
assassment af this matter.,

Key sources of esfimalion uncentainty

Camying value of non-cument assets

irapainment

The Group assesses the carrying values of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assels annually.
Recoverabiity is dependent upon assumptions and estimates regarding market conditicns, fulure cash

flows and discount rates, known as at the 27 March 2021. A maternial change in assumplions may signiicantly
impact the potential impaiment of these assets.

An extension to the dark perod of 4 months would not generate an impairment 1o any of the cash
generating units {CGUs} but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% of asset values of the UK, US,
Gemmany and Marketing Services CGUs respectively. Further delail con be found in nate 12.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Revenue

The Group's revenue from extemat customers by classificaticn s detailed below:

52 week parlod 52 week pefiod
ended 27 March ended 28 Morch

2021 2020

£'000 £000
VYenue Renial and Production Reiated Services 10,489 230.048
Promotional & Markefing Services 18,898 115,478
Ticket and Retail Sales 5,456 119,547
Qther 4,798 11,654
Total revenue 41,64) 476,747

The Group's revenue frorm external customers by geogrophical location is detailed betow:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

201 2020

£000 £000
United Kingdom 21,091 213,847
Rest of Europe 10,349 123,473
North America 4,657 129,441
Asia 2.544 2,986
Totol tevenue 41,641 476747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operaling {loss)/proflt

Net loss for the periad has been arived at after charging/ (crediting):

52 week 52 weok period

period ended ended 28
27 Match March 2020

2021
£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 26415 21,439
Depreciation ¢harge for right-of-use assets -buildings 13 a8.801 8,759
Amortisalion of intangible fixed assets 12 1,988 1,974
Impcirment of property, plant and equipment 13 - 7.154
Impoirment of intangible assets 12 . 7,776
Impairment of long term debtor - 8,947
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 2,816 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 12 122 -
Inventory write downs 14 194 -
Cperating lecse charges 7,018 2,15
Staff costs & 38,487 137,810
Finance income 7 {1.546) {1,344)
finance costs 8 47,682 30,926
Interest axpensa on IFRS 14 lease [iabilities 8 6,390 6.547

5.  Auditor's rsmunerafion

The analysis ¢l the guditor's remunerction is as follows:

52 week pedod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28
2021 #March 2020

£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and their associates for the oudit of:

The consolidated and parent financial siolerments 4463 418
The subssictiary finoncial statements 50 65
Totol audit fees 513 433
Taxation complionce services - 71
Taxation advisory services - 10
Tolal non-avdit fees - 8]
Tolal 513 564
58
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Stofl costs

The average monthly number of employees (inciuding executive directars] wias:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

o1 2020
Directors 5 5
Venue staff 3174 4,349
Other 1.105 1,526
Tetal monthly average number of employees 4,284 5,880

The average number of individudils with an employment coniract in place duting the period i
4,698, Of thws population, the total monthly average number of employees paid through the
payrol during the period is sat aut in the tabla above.

Thelr aggregale remuneration comgrised: £000 £000
Yages and salaries 3141 125.668
Social security costs 8,702 2,703
Other pension costs 1.644 2,441
Total oggregatle remuneration 38487 137,810

Current year staff costs are prasented net of income from government suppor schemes totalling £41.3
million {2020: £nil).

Directors disclosed hare are only those employed Dy the Group, 50 sxclude boord members employed by
the Group's sharsholders.

The average monthly number of employees of the Company was five, being the executive directors
{2020; five).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR |HE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

& Stalf costs (continued)
Remuneration of directors and key management personnel
The ramuneration of the directors and key management personnel of the Group is set out below:

52 week perlod 52 week perniod
ended 27 March ended 28 March

20 2020
£000 £000
Remunerafion of directors:
Salaries, fees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 1.045 1,501
Money purchase pension contributions 11 20
Tota) remuneration of directors 1,056 1.521
Remuneration of directors and key monagement personnel.
Remuneration 2,474 3,887
Social sacunly contributions 9 513
Pension 54 40
Total remuneration of directors and key management 2879 4,250

personnel

Key managemant personnel are those who have significant influence over the opergtional nurning of the
busingss. During the paeriod, refirement benafts wera accuing to two [2020: two)] directors in respect of
delfingd contribution schames,

The highest paid director received remuneration of £575000 [2020: £935000]. the vaue of the
Company’'s contribulions paid to o defined confribution pension scheme in respect of that individvol
amounted 1o £4,000 {20200 £10.000).

During the pericd. direclars and key management personnel received tolal compensation for boss of office
fotalling £1.157.000 {2020: £nil). on which social security of £143.000 (2020: £nil) was paid by the Group.

Fensions

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension cosl charge represents
confributions payable by the Group to the fund and omounted to £1,644.000 {2020: £2.441.000}.
Conlibutions totalling £629.000 [2020: £340.000] were payable 1o the fund of the balunce sheet date.

Employee benefit trust

The Group has no direct employee share scheme or share-based payment arangement. However, cerfain
employees of the Group have acquired an inferest in the equity of the holding Company via an emplovee
benefit frust in bath the curent and prior periods.,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202)

7. Finance income

52 week 52 week period

patiod ended

ended 28

27 Maich 2021 march 2020

E'000 £000
interest income 1.544 1.324
Unwinding of discount on long temn receivables and - 20
payables
Finance income 1.544 1344
8. Finance cosls
52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March
20 2020
£000 £000
interest an lodns from parent undertakings 1.0%0 1.841
Interest on bank overdrafts and foans 25,582 22,084
Interest on obligations under finonce leases 4,995 4,957
Interest expsanse on IFRS 14 lease labilties 5.3%0 &.547
Amortisation of finoncing fees 2,597 3780
Foreign exchonge loss/{gain) 13418 {1.73&}
Finance costs 54,072 37473
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202

%.  Toxafion

Ancitysis of tax credit In the period

52 week 52 wosk pefiod

period ended ended 28
27 March tarch 2020
20

Cument fax £'000 £000
Tax fcredity f charge on loss for the perfod {173) 431
Prior yaar tax adjustonant (1.333) {4,570}
Foreign tax in the period - 967
Total curent tax {1.508) {3.172)

Deferred tax 22
Defterad tax credit curent yogr [18.097) {8,333)
Change in tax rate - 2.760
Adustments in respect of prior periods 11.419 763
Total defened fax [6.677) {4.810)
Tax on loss (8,183) {7.982)

LUK corporation box is calculoted of 19% (2050 19%} of the estimoted taxable profit for the pedod. Toxation
for other jurisdictions is colculated at the rates prevailing i the respective jvisdiclions,

Thera is Nil income 1ax impact {2020: Nil) for tems within other comprehensive income.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued])
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

¥. Taxation (confinued)

The credit for the period con be reconciled to the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive InCome as

follows:

52week period 52 week period
ended 28 ended 30 March
March 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Loss belore tax [147.135} _{33,907)

Loss multiplied by standiard rote of carporation tax in the UK of
19% (2020: 19%] 127.956) {6.442)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax puposes [141) 3.564
Adjustments to tax chargs in respect of prior periods o087 {3.807]
Non-qualifying depreciation 728 -
Effect of different rote for defewed lox - 2780
Effect of overseaqs tax rates {2,683 {3.402}
Thegalre tax credit {173 {935)
Change in urrecognised daefemed tax assets 11,970 -
Effect of foreign exchange (15} -
Other reconciling differences - 280
Tax credit tor the pericd {8.183) {7.982)

The closing UK defered tax iobillly as ai 27 March 2021 has been calcuiated ot 19% reflecting the tax rate
at which the defered tax liability is expected to become payable.

Anincrease in the UK corporation tax rate o 25%, effective form | Apiil 2023, was ornouncad in Finance Bill
2021 which received royal assent on 10 June 2021 becoming Finance Bl 2021. This rate had not been
substantively enacted at the baionce sheet date and therefore is not reflected in the tax calcuiations for
the year ended 27 March 2021, The impact of the rate change from 19% to 25% would be to incraase the
defemred tax fiabilly as at 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 to £14,320,000.

Deferred tax lichiliies have not been recognised in respect of losses in overseas subsidiaries s it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be avaiable against which the unused tax losses can be Utlised.

Deferred tax assets on corried forward unutifsed losses In Australio of £2,392,000 (2020 £2,097.000), Germaony
of £29,575,000 (2020: £10,819,000 recognised) and ithe US of £30.903,000 |2020: £ni} have nol been
recognisad.

Threre are carried forward unutiised tax losses in the UK of £87,.382,000 (2020: £351.000). A deferrad tax asset
of £14,534.000 (2020: £nil) has been racognised as it s expected that these losses will be utilised within the
next two years.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

10. Investments

Ine directly and indirectly held subsidiaries ore listed in note 33.

Group As ot 52 wealk  As af 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 mMarch 2020
£'000 £000

Cost and nel book value
Listed nvestments - |
Uniisted investments 2.178 4,355
investments 2,178 4,356
Company Asat 82 week As af 52 week
pesiod ended period ended
27 March 202% 28 March 2020
£000 ECO0

Cost ond net book value
subsidiary investments 413,835 262,575
Investmants 413,835 262,575

The Group’s unlisted investimenits relate 1o its invesiment in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, o
company incorporated in the United Stales of America of which the Group owns 1.08%.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Intergsts in associates and joint ventures — Group

Asat 52 week As gt 52 week
period ended period endad
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £'000
Interests in joint venlues 2.8 515
interests in associates 697 1,004
Interests in associates and Joint ventures 3,528 1.519

Joint venhwres

The Group has interests in severql individually immaoteriol joint ventures which take the form of both
productions and businesses. Fach investment is structured a3 @ separata vehicle and the Group has a
residual inferest in the net assets of the invesimeant, Accardingly, the Group has classified its interests as joint
vantures. Far some of the productions, the Group i enfitied 10 less than 50% of the praduction sarmings

however the production agreement requires unanimous consent in decision making resulting in joint control.

The following companies have Q year-end date different to fhe Group's accounfing financial yeor end of
27 March 2021:

- HP West Ena: 31 October 2021

- JB UK Towr il: 31 Decemiber 2021

- Traire Times SF LF: 31 December 2021

- Train Times Broadway LP; 31 December 2021

This is as a result of the entities not faling under IEHL hence yaoar end dates may nead to suit the requirements
of all shareholders,

For the purpases of applying the equity method of accounting, the financial statements of HP west £nd (for
the year ended 31 October 2020). and JB UK Tour I, Train Fime 5F LP. Train Times Broadway LP (for the year
aended 31 December 2020} have been used.

The joint ventures are not restricted in their ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends,

or to repay loans or advances by the entity.

The following table anatyses, in aggregate, the canmying amount and share of total comprehensive mcome

of these Joint Ventures.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11, Interests In assoclates aond Joint ventures - Group (conknued)

As at 52 week
petiod #nded
27 Moarch 2021

As ot 52 weak
period ended
28 pMarch 2020

£000 £000

Carrying amount of Interests In joint vertures 2,831 515

Share of total compeehensive Income {249) (702}
Associates

As al 52 weak Asal 52week

pericd ended  period ended

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000

Canrying amount of interests in associates 497 1.004

Share of tokal comprehansive income
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANC!AL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intangible assets - Groyp

Total
Assels under Olher - Intangibla
Software  construction Intangibles Assofy Goadwill Talal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Cost
Af 30 March 2017 16719 - 6,498 23,417 375,954 3N
Additions 2929 3.292 7447 13,648 - 13,848
Transfers 3,722 {3.222) . - - -
Exchange differences 3 - 462 445 4,565 5,030
At 28 March 2020 23,073 70 14,407 32,550 380,519 418,069
Additions 1,45} 2,892 20 4,383 1,434 5798
Disposals {1.084] - {3.849) {4,953) - {4.953)
Exchange differences {53} - {758) (818) (11.627] {12,443)
Al 27 March 2021 23,382 2,942 9,800 34,144 370,326 406,470
Accumuiated amortisatien and impoliment
At 30 March 2019 8,245 - 3,207 11,472 7ATS 18,951
Charge tor the 52 week period 1.541 - 433 1.974 - 1.974
impairment - - 7776 1,776 - 7776
Exchange differencas - - - - 310 3a
Al 28 March 2020 7.804 - 11414 21,222 7,789 29.011
Charge for the 52 week period 1.917 - n 1,988 - 1,948
Disposals {1,003) - {3.828) (4,831) - [4.831)
Exchange differences (47} - (797} {844) (347} {1.191)
At 27 March 2021 10.673 - 4,842 17.535 7,442 24.977
Canrying amount
At 28 March 2021 12,70% 2,962 2,938 18,409 342,884 381.473
At 28 March 2020 13,247 70 2,90 14,328 372,730 387,052

The amount of expenditures recognised in the camying amount! of assets under construction is £2.9 mifiion
(2020: £3.3 milion}.

Gther intongible wssets relote to show rights costs and pre-production related costs.

The Compoany has no intangitle assets (2020; £ni).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contfinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intangible assets — Group {continyed)

Goodwill acquired in a business combinalion is allocaled, at acquisition. to the cash generating units
{CGlls) or group of units that are expected 1o benefit kom that business combination. The camying amount
of goodwilt hos been allocated to the following CGUs:

At 27 March
202¢%
£000

United Kingdom 249834
UsSA 60,076
painland Europe 39.217
Marketing services 13.757
Total goodwill 342,884

The Group tests goodwill and Intangiole assets annuaily for impaimnent, or more frequently if thers are
indications that goodwill might be impaired. Property, piant and equipment is dlso tested for impairment if
there are indicators of impaimens, which there have been in 1he cument and pricr year. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs and the group of units ore detemined from vaive in use calculations.

The impaiment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Mainland Europe and Marketing Services do not indicate
any impairment against goodwil, ather intangibles or property, piant and equipment.

The kay assumptlions and resulting atiributes of the impaiment review are as follows:

United Malnlond Marketing
£Ms Kingdom UsSA Evtope Services
Goodwill 245.8 0.1 9.2 13.8
PPE / Other intangibles 247.8 4.8 44.0 8.7
Total assets 497.% 1549 845.2 225
WACC assumption 10.4% 11 .0% 10.0% 10.4%
GOP growth 2.0% 20% 2.5% 20%
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Inlangible assats - Group (continued)

The values tor the key assumptions were amived at by taking into consideration historical infermation and
comparing to extemal sources where appropriate, such os market rates for discount factors. GOP growih
rates are used as the terminal value grawth rate in calculating the net prasent values of the respective
CGUs, while the inflotion rates cre appiied a5 the base growth factor for yaars 210 4,

Budgated cash flows - the calculation of value in use has been based on the cash flows forecast in the

Group's latest five yaar plan.

The five yeor plan assumes thol COVID-19? continues Yo disrupt the Group through FY22, with varying re-
opening dotes across our temitories starting from October 2021. The Group's cash flows are forecast to return
to pre-COVID-17 levels in Fr23.

The fallowing sensitivities were applied to the impairment tesh:

Sensitivity 1 - daik perlod: A plausiple extension to the dark pedod of 6 months would not generate an
impaimery ta any of the cash generating units (CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21R. 103%, 289% and 122%
of assal values of the UK, U3, Maintand Europe and Marketing Services CGUs respectively.

Sensitivity 2 - diacount rate: A five percentage points increase in the discount rate would crecte an
impairment to the UK CGU and reduce headroom 1o 34%, 143% and 51% of asset values of the US, Mainland
Europe and Marketing Services CGUs respectively.

The increqse in discount rate required to create an impairment to each CGU s UK 1% US 8%: Mainiand
Europe 21%; and Marketing Services 10%.

This sensifivity was aiso tested ot a venue level. A five percentage points increase in the discount rate
would create impainments to four UK venues, one US venue and one Mainland Eurape venue.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NQIJES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Property. plant and equipment - Group

Right Leng-term Shord-lerm Fidures
freehold ofUse leosehoid leusehold  Assets under and
property Asset property property  conshuction fitings Tatal
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 30 Mmarch 2019 163,606 - 140,688 22367 7.702 74137 408,500
Adiditions 8,221 - 10,228 592 8,553 14,145 43,73%
IFRS 16 — Righd-of-wse asset - 87.5%0 - - - - 87.590
Transters - - - - {10,257) 10.257 -
Exchange differences ) 02 3594 2,51 {370 {53] [210} 6,444
At 28 March 2020 172,729 91,184 153.497 22.58¢9 §945 100232% 544273
Additions 2,258 - 240 25 6,465 1,400 10,348
Disposals {204} [255) 1119} 1783) - {25975) [27.33%)
Transter 63 - - - (8,67 6] 3813 -
Exchange differences {1.448) {5.809) (7841 - {28] {2,403} {17.52%)
Al 27 March 2021 173,394 85120 145,777 21,43 3,504 82,164 511,79
Accumulated depreciation and impalrment
At 30 March 2019 146,836 - 26,740 4,347 - 27114 77037
Charge for the 52 week period 3,429 8.75¢ 5053 598 - 12,359 30,178
Impoirment - - - - - 7.154 7154
_Exchange differences - - 684 : - 293 §7¢
Al 28 March 2020 20265 8,759 32,477 4,945 - 48922 1153468
Charge for the 52 week pefiod 6,514 8,801 5,334 4B3 - 14,284 35414
Disposals (194) - ¢ {770} - {23,465} (24.520)
Exchange differences [275) {479 {1.653] - - {1,540 (3.v47)
_Al 27 March 2021 _2531“0_ “”1‘?,001 34,067 4,453 - 38201 1237
Canying amount
At 28 March 2021 147,088 48,037 109,710 17.173 3,506 41,963 I8V .479
At 28 March 2020 152,464 82,425 121,020 17,644 5945 51,807 430,905

The amount of expenditures recognised in the carying omount of assets under construction is £6.5 million

{2020; £8.46 million).

The Company has no property, plant and equipment (2020: Enil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE $2 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Inveniories - Gravp

As gl 52 Asal 52 week
weak patlod period endled
ended 27 238 March 2020

March 2021
£000 £'000
Firished goods ot cost 642 1,395
Inventory provision {157) (351)
Finished goods and goods lor resale 505 1.044

The Group wrote off £194,000 of inventary during the year (2020: £nill.
The Company has no inventory (2020: £nil).

15. Investmenis In shows — Group

Asal 52 waek Aso! 52 week
period ended period endad
27 march 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £0060
investments In shows 2.393 3,794

Investiments in shows reftect the Group's investment in productions in which it does not have g contralling

interest.

The Cornpany has no investments in shows {2020: £nilj,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

146. Traode and other recelvables — Grovp

As of 52 week Asat 52 week
perlad ended pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Notes receivable 9,656 10,9464
Ciher non-curent receivables 12,775 12.352
Amounis recelvable alter more than 12 months 22,431 23,318

The notes receivable balance comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in relation to the
financing structure of the redevelopment of The Hudson Thealre via a well-used arangement created by
the US government to encourage financial institutions 1o invest into redevelopment of historic buildings.
Interast s receivable ot roles between 0.48% and 0.5%. These will be recoveroble fiom 1the counterparties
cither over the fe of the inskument or by transfer of leasehold interests. The long-term receivable relates to
a balance acquited os part of the ACE gcquisition and s o fee for theatre development services provided
which will be paid over a number of years.

As at 52 week As at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Trade receivatles 14,989 29,385
Prepayments and accrued income 6,611 11,419
Corporation tax receivabla 4,747 5,037
VAT receivable 3,982 -
Other receivables 2.031 16,513
Amovunts receivable within 12 months 39,340 62,554

COther receivables include a related parly balunce of £3.7 million due from the Group's parent company.
IE Luxco S.o.rl [Luxembourg) {2020 £3.7 million],

The Company had no frade and other receivables (2020: £ni).

Allimpaired trade receivables have been provided to the axtent they are believed not 10 be recoverable.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repeorting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The
Group does nat hold any colloteral as security. Assels which are neither past due nor impaired are
considerad fully recoverabile,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

16. Trade and otherreceivakies - Grovp (confinuved)

Anatysis of irade receivable ageing
Credit nsk mmanagement

Credil risk refers to the sisk thal a counterparty will default on its confractual obiigations resuliing in finoncial
loss to the Group. As of 28 March 2020, some of the Group's trade receivables were due and/or past due
but not impaired. Thesa relate to a numiber of independent customaers with ne matenial concentration within
any one customer and no customers who arg of particularty high dsk of default, The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

As ot 52 week As at 52 week

patiod ended 27  period ended
March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000
Up to 3 months 4,649 19,338
Ato amonihs 234 2.929
Over § months 10,720 10,316
Total 18,823 32,583

As of 27 March 2021, the Group also held past due Irade receivables which had been provided for:

Az al 52 week As at 52 week
pericd ended peviod ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Up to 3months 123 2,078
3to 6 months 130 217
Over & monihs asl 03
Tolal 434 3,198

Under IFRS 9, the Group is required to ufiise objective evidence as well as consider forward locking
information, such as the economic conditions in the countries where the Group operates, and the
probability of default when calculating expected credit losses. The maturity of fincncial assets is therefere
used as an indicator as to the probakility of defautt.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

17. Cash and cash equivalents - Group

As at 52 week As at 52 week
perkod ended period ended 28
27 March 2021 March 2020
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents held in own accounts 182,872 130,218
Cash and cash equivalents held in escrow 2,560 8.849
Cash and cash equivolents 185,432 139,065
The Company hos £144,000 of cash and cash equivalents {2020: £nil].
18. Trade and other payables - Group
As of 52 week As at 52 week
perod endaed  period ended
27 March 28 march 2020
nn
£'000 £'000
Trade payables 26,434 37,155
Defered mcome 113,802 142,356
Accruals 35,6846 58,474
Cther taxation ond social security 2007 4915
Tax creditor 981 2.104
Other payables 8,734 15,014
Govemment grants received and not utlised 923 796
Trade and ather payables due wihin 12 months 182,571 260,816

The Company has an infercompany payable of £11.0milion [2020: £10.9 milion) which is repayabls on

demond, no interest is charged.

The other payables balance includes payroil creditors and amounts due 1o production companies.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

19. Bomrowings - Group

As al 52 week Asat 32 week
periocd ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Bank loars - senior deist 3s8,000 358,000
Bank loans - revolving credit facility 69,370 §9.370
Toial senlor debt 427,370 427,370
Fair value adjustrnent / unamortised financing fees 16,858 14,241
Bank loans - other - 84,409
Shareholder loans 132,177 -
Borrowings 583,407 526,040
Amount due for settlemant within 12 months &2,37¢ 69,370
Amount dua for setlement after 12 months 514,037 456,670
Bomowings 583 407 524,040

The bonk loans — senior debl, are secured by a charge over the assels of Intemgtional Enferfainment
Finance Limited, a subsiciary of the Company and the majority of its sulbsidiary undertakings. Thaese loans
bear interest at a rate which fluciuates in ine wilth LIBOR with o margin ranging between 4.25% and 4.75%

and are governed by a senior finance agreement with requisite covenants.

The Group also has [oans from its sharehalders totating £139.2m, including accrued interest [ 2020: ENIl].
Interest is non-cosh paying and accrues af fixed rotes ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%.

As of 52 week As at 52 week
pericd ended  pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2o

£000 £000
Bank loans - senior debt 427,370 427 370
Bank leans - other - 84,409
3hareholder loans 139,179 -
Fair value adiustiment 18,681 18,461
Unamaortised financing fees [1.803) {4,400)
Botrowings 583,407 526,040

The Company does not have any borrawings {2020 £nill.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obligations under finonce leases ~ Gioup

Asald2  Asat 52 week
week period period ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
March 2021
£'000 E000
Amount due within 12 months
Finance leases 4241 4,276
IFRS 14 leases 12,182 15,204
Obllgoﬂons undes lease liabililes 15,373 19,474
As ot 52 As at 52 week
weaek pericd pericd ended 28
ended 27 rarch 2020
March 2021
£'000 £000
Amount due ofter 12 months
Finance leases 86,558 86,629
IFRS 1 & ie0ses 63,137 71,077
Obligations under lease Nabllities 149,493 157,704
Finonce leoses - Group
Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease
poyments
27 March 2021 28 Manch 2020 27 March 202% 28 March 2020
€000 £'600 £000 £'000
Within one year 4,329 4,286 421 4,270
Iy Yhe second to fifth yaars 17,753 17,578 15,134 14,985
inclusive
After five vears 400,673 405,637 73,964 73.476
422,755 427,503 23,311 92731
Less: fulure finance charges {329.444) {334,439}
93,311 23,044 131 2,70
Unamortised finance costs {2.544) {2,155} {2.544] {2.165)
Present value of logse 90.747 90,899 20.767 90,564
obligations
Amount due within 12 months 4211 4 270
Amount due after 12 months 86,556 86,829
%0.747 90,899

The Group leases cerfain properties under finance lease avangements. The average lease term is 75 yeors,

The Group does not have the option to purchase the praperties for a nominal value of the end of the lease

terms, ond the Growsy's obligations under the finance leases are secwrad over the properties being leased.

Interast rates undedying all obligations under finance leases are Implicit rates ranging from 5.3% to 5.8%

[2020: 5.3% to 5.8%).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202]

20. Qbligalions under finance leases — Group {continued)

IFRS 14 lease liabilities - Group

As at 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March

2020
£'000 £000
Current 12,182 15,204
Non=-current &3,137 TL077
IFRS 16 lease Habilty 7531y 86,281

The weighted average incremental borowing rate applied to measure lease liablitles is 7.92%.

Az ot 52 week

period ended 27

March 2021

Maturlty analysls £000
Mo loter thon 1 year 12,182
Later than | year ond not later than 5 years 29.958
Laler than 5 years 33179
75.319

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease fiabilities. Lease liabiities are
maonitored within the Group's treasury funclion. Overall the variable payments consfifute up to 5% of fhe
Group's entire lease payments. The group expects this rafio to remain constont in future years. The variable
payments depend on ticket sales and consequentiy on the overall economic development over the next
few yaars. The total cash outfiow for leases amounted 10 £13.6m {2020: £13.6m).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

21. Provisions - Group

Acquisition- Dilapidations Refunds and Other Total

related Ticketing

provislons Provision
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 30 March 2019 11,341 432 - 712 12,584
Additions - 2,611 11,241 - 13882
Utilisedrelecsed (1.G55) - - - {1.055)
Af 28 March 2020 10,286 3,244 11,241 N2 25483
Additions - 224 377 1,142 3.889
Forelgn exchange adjustments (451} 20 - - [794)
Utilised/releasad - - {10.804] (190] {12777)
Al 27 March 2021 9,835 3.4%0 412 1.454 15801

Acquisition-related provisions relafe to earn out agreements inrespect of the acquisitions of Mehr! Group.
The consideration is payable dependent on success factor criteria over the next two ysars,

Dilapidalions redate to the expected level of digpidations mainly related to central offices. The adequaocy
of the provisions is periodically reviewed to ensure that they wil meet the final obligations.

The Company has no provisions [2020: £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEFK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

22. Deferred fax - Group

Revafualion Accelerated Acquisiion Tax losses Other fiming Totat
of property tox Intangibles diferences
depraciation

£000 £°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

At 30 March 2019 24,457 {654] 2,199 (2,442} (1.618) 21,942
Charge/{credit) to profit of Joss 2116 52 (73} {12} {5,993 {4.810)
At 28 March 2020 24,573 (402) 2,124 £3.354) {7.611) 17,132
Charge/{credit) to profit of loss {654) 842 {871 {13,182] 6.832 {6,249]
At 27 March 2021 25919 240 2,039 {14,534} (779) 10,883
27 March 28 March

200 2000

£'000 £000

Cefarred tax icbilities 28,198 28,699
Defarred tax assefs {17315} {13.567]
Net defenred tax lablltty 10,833 17132

Recognised delerred tax assets are expectad to be redlisad by profits generated in future years in each

relevant lamitory,

The Company has no deferred tax (2020: Enil}.

23. Share capital - Group and Company

Number of £1 Mominal
Ordinary shares value
£'000

Autharised, Issued ond fully paid:
At 30 march 2019 and 28 March 2020 262,187 262
Net proceeds of shares issued 151,240 152
At 27 March 2021 413,427 414

On 14 Cctober 2020 an additional 85,500 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal vaive:

of £1 each for a total consideration of £34k,

On 25 March 2021 an additional 65,761 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal value

of £1 each for a total consideration of E64k,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Notes lo the cash fiow stalement

Net cash generated by operaling activilles

For the 52 week For the 52

period ended week period

27 March 2021 ended 28

March 2020

£000 £000

Operating (loss)fprofit {94.4609] 2222
Impairment of assets - 14,930
Amaortisation of intangible fixed assets 1,938 1.974
Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment 28,615 21,439
Depreciation charge for fight-of-use assets - bulldings 8,801 8759
Share of results of asseciates and joint ventures {24%9) {702)
{Decrease)}/increase in provisions §{9.682) 9,959
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital {67.134) 58,581
Decrease/{increase) in inventories 539 {125)
Decrease ir receivables 24,081 1815
(Decrease}/increase in payables {48.147) 8,964
Cash flow from operaling acilivities {110,663) 69,237
Corporate tax received/{paid) 2,137 {7.002)
Net cash flow from operaling activities [108.526) 62235
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Notes to cash low staiement {continued)

Met debt recencRalion
As at 52 week As at 52 waek
petlod ended 27 period ended 28
March 2021 March 2020
£'000 £000
Bank locns - senior debt {358,000] (358,000)
Bank loans - revalving credit facity [69.37Q) (69.370)
Total senlor deht (422,370) [427,370)
Foir value adjustmant/ unamortised financing [14,858] {14,241}
fees
Bark loans - other - {84,407
Shareholder loans [13%9.179) -
Obligatiens under finance legses [166,088) {177.180)
Total dabt (749,493) (703.220)
Caosh and cash eguivalents 185.432 139.065
Net debt {564,051) (564,155)
Movemend in net debt
Cash ¢t bank Debt Total
£'000 £000 £000
Net debt as ot 28 March 2020 139.065 {703.220) (544,155)
Cash flows 48,339 (38,404} 9.933
Foreign exchange adjustments (1,972) - {1,%72)
Other non-cash movement - (7.867}  {7.B47)
Net debt as at 27 March 2021 185,432 (749,473} (564,081)
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

25. Contingent liabillties

A comporate cross guaraniee of the senior debt exists between the Compony and the majority of its
subsidiary underiakings. The senior debt is secured by o debenture cver the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group also has in place various guarantees across its porifolio, which are typical of commercial
and property rental agreements.

26. Contingent assets

At the balance sheet date the Group had applied 10 the Gemmon government for COVID-12 related grant
income, At that date management deemed it probable that the applicalion would be successtul, with

expected future income of €10.8 milflon.

27. Commitments

Capltat commiiments

Af the balance sheet date, the Group had material contractual commitments for capital expenditure of
£nil {2020 £rdl).

28. Financlal risk management

Capltal risk management

Tre Group's objectives when managing copital are to maximise shareholder value whist safeguarding the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. in comman with other privale equity porifolio companies,
he Group caries a high level of net debt compored to equity. Total capitalis calculated as total equity as
shown in the corsolidated statement of position, pius net bank debt. Net bank debt is calculated as the
totat of long and short termn bomowings as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posilion, less
cash and cash eguivalents,

Financlal risk management objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, ncluding currency risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Groug's overall risk management programme focuses on minimising potential adverse eflects on the
Group's financial performance.

Descriptions of the financial risks and how thess are managed ond mitigated ore included in the Strategic
Report onpaoges 11 ond 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PER{CD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

28. Financial risk management {caontinued)

The below table demonsirates the sensitivily 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates and foreign

exchange rates,
Financlal risks SensHivity analysis
ntersst rate sisk An incregse/decrease of one percenfoge point in LIBOR would

increase/decrease he Group's loss by £4,087,000 {2020: £5,117,000).

Foreign exchange Had GBF sirengthened against the US dolar by an additional 1R during the
risk peficd, assuming all other veriables remained constant, the Group's lass
would have decreased by £288.000 (2020 £191,000).

Had GBP strengthened against the Eura by an addiional 1% during the
period. assuming all other variables remained constant, the Group's loss
would have decreased by £1 10,000 {2020: increase of £352,000).

Uguidity

The following lables detail the Group's corntractual maturities for its financial fiabifities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drown up bosed on the undiscounted cash Hows of financiol
liabilities and based on the earliest dote oh which the Group con be required to pay. The table Includes
bolh interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest Hows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the balance sheet date. The Group it hot party to any
derivative contracts.

Less than |
year l-Syears 5+ yeors Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
27 March 2021
Trade and other payables 72.865 - - 72,855
Finance lease liabilities 4,329 17,753 400,673 422,755
Bomowings 69,370 514,037 - 533,407
Total cash-seftied fablilies 145,564 531,790 400,473 1,079.027
28 March 2020
Trade and other payables 115,106 - - 115,106
Finance lease iciities 4,286 17,578 405,639 427,503
Borrowings 69,370 454,670 - 525,040
Tolal cash-setiied Nablliftes 188,742 474,248 405,637 1,048 449

The Company has no relevant cash-setiled assets or liabilities and so has no lquidity risk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

2%. Financlal Instruments

Categorias of financlal instruments

Cash and financial Total
recelvables Sabliities at
amoriised cost
£000 £'000 £000
27 Maich 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 - 185,432
Trade and other receivabias 39,360 - 39,3580
FHnanclal assels 224,792 - 224,772
Trade and cther payables - 74,844 74,844
Bomowings - 583.407 583,407
Obligations under finance leases - 166,086 186,084
Financlal llabllites - 824,339 824.23¢%
Net inancial assets/(Habilties] 224,792 {824,33%) {599.547)
28 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 139,045 - 139,045
Trade and other receivables 62,554 - 62.554
Financial assels 201,517 - 201,419
financial ligblifies
Trade and other pavables - 1172.210 117,210
Borowings - 526040 524040
Chbligations under finonce leoses - 177,180 177180
Financlal llobAlies - 820430 9 = 820430
Nat inancial assets/(llabliiies) 201,419 (820,430) {$18.811)

Fak value measurements

The directars consider that the camying amounts of financial assets and financiat Kabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximale to their fair volues,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

30. Controlling party

The Company’s uitimate parent company is i€ Luxco §.a.r.! {Luxembourg). which is confrolled by Providence
Equity Partners VIl A LP {Cayman klands) and Providence VI Global Holdings LP {Cayman klandst. The

Directors consider these paries to be the controling party.

31. Reiated party transactions

Group
Tronsaciions with directors and key management personned

Remuneration paid to the directors or ather, who ore considered Yo be key management personnel, is

disclosed in note &.
Trading fransacfions

Duing the perdiod, the Group provided production-réiated services to associates and joint ventures of
£328 562 [2020: £51.875). Al the end of the period, halances of £1,251.044 (2020: £115,585} were owed to
the Group by the associales and joint ventures, These balances are unsecured and will be settled
periodically aver the course of the production. There ore cumently no provisions relaling fo these bolonces.

These transactions have been conducted at arm’s length.
32. Events alter balance sheet date

©n 10 December 2020, IEHL U3 Holdings, Inc. entered into o sale and purchqse agreement for the
ocquisition of Broadway San francisco. LLC and Nederiander Detroil, LLC for consideration of E173.9
milion. On 29 March 2021 the conditions were met to define the acqguisition date of this fransaction.

This acauisition adds two theatras in San Francisco ond three in Detroit to the Group's portfolio of owned

and operated venues.

Subsequent to the period end the Group received €5.4 million of COVID-19 related govemment gront
income from the German government,
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INYERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entitles, assoclates and joint ventures and investiments

Subsidiaries

100% of the ordinary share capital of all subsidiarias is owned direcily or indirectly unless otherwise indicated.
Where indicated. shareholdings ore effective ownership percentages as held by the parent (e, if o
subsidiary holding company is 0% owned, and owns 100% of dll its subsidiaries, all subsidiaries are shown os

being 20% owned].

incorporaled in United Kingdom

Al subsidianes have taken the sd79a exemption from audit under parent company guarantee.

Subsidiory undestaking % Shares held Principal activity

Direct investments

Intemational Entertainment Midco Limited! Holding company

indirect Investments
AKA CP Limited? Marketing services
AKA Group Limited? Holding company
AKA NYC Limited? Marketing services
AKA Promotions Uimited? Marketing sewices
ATG Entertainment Limitec? Holding company
ATG London Limited® Theatre operater and

ticketing company

ATG Management Umited? Dommant
ATG Productions Limited?® Production company
Aylasbury Walterside Theoks Limited® Theatre operator
Churchill Theatre Bromlgy Limited? Thealre operator
CP Studio Limited? Marketing sevvices
Digital Media Services UK Limited? Cigital media services
Encore intemationat Merchondise Limited? Mserchandiser
First Family Entertainment LLF2 Production company
G.5 Lashmar Limited? 90% Domant
Glasgow Theatres Limited? Theatre operator
Highland Fling Japan Limited® Doarmant
internationatl Entertainment Finance Limited” Hokfing Compony
Intermational Entertainment investiments Holding compony
Limited*
Lendon Theatre Club Limited? Domant
London Tumshyle Limitec® Dormant
Miltor: Keynes Theatre Limited? Thealtre operator
New Wimbledon Theake Uimited® Theatre operator
Playhouse Theatre Limited? Theatre operator
Richmond Theatre Limitec? Theatre operator
Savoy Theatre Group Limited? Holding company
Savoy Theatre Holdings Limited? Domani
Savey Theatre Limited® Theatra operator
Screenstage Umited?® Dormant
Screenstage Productions Limited? Dormant
Smart Plays Limited?® Domant
Sonia Friedmon Productions Limited? Production company
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entities, assaciales and foint ventures and Investments {continued)

SFP Dreams Limited?®

Production company

SFP Shows Limited? Production comparny
SFP Sunny Limited? Production company
Stoke-on-Trent Theatres Limited® Theatre cperator

The Ambassador Entertainment Group Holding company
Limited?

The Ambassador Thedatre Group Limited? Holding and productions
The Ambassador Theatre Group [Venues) Theatre cperator
Lirmited?

The Ambassador Thedire Group Oversaas Holding company
Holdings Limited”

Thaatre Manogement (Holdings) Limited? Holding company
Theatre Management Limited* Theatre aperator

The Duke of York's Theatre Umited?
The Ticket Machine Group Limited?®

Theatre operator
Ticketing agency

Thegatre Royal Brighton Limited® Theatre operator
walter's House Limited? Thealre operator
Woking Jumstyle Limited? Theatre operator
incorporated in USA
Subsidiory yndertaking % Shares held Principal activity

ACE Theoticol Group, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises, LLC?

Arts Centar Entenprises — Brookiyn, LLC?
Arts Center Enlerprises — New Odaans, LLC?
Arts Cender Enlerprises — Sugar Land, LLC'?
Ambassador Theatre Group ~ NY, LLC?
ATG Colonial, LLC®

AlG San Francisco

ATG Tickess US, LLCE

Creative Partnership LA, Inc?

Encore Merchandising, inc't

Hudson Thealre, LLC*

IEH1. US Holdings Inc?

Kings Theatre Developer, LLC7

Kings Theatre Manager, LLCS

Lyric Theatre, LLC®

Majestic Presents LLC7

Saenger Aggregator Leverage Lander, LLC7
Soenger Theatre Developer, Inct

Saenger Theatre Manager, LLCA

Soenger Theatre Master Tenant LLC

Mancgermant services
Theatre operator
Theatre aperator
Theatre operator
Venue operator
Production compomy
venue operator
Venue operatar
Tickaling cgency
Marrketing services
Domant

Theagtre operator
Holding compamy
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatrs operator
Theatre operatar
Financing company
Yenue developer
Maonaging memher
Theatre operator

Saenger Theatre Partnership, Ltd? Dormant

SFP-NY, LLC? Production company
Saenger Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC Venue developer
Sundance Productions, inc? Production company

The Ambassador Thedatre Group US Holdings, Incs
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidlory enfllies, associates and [olnl veniures and invesiments {conlinued)

Incorporafed In Germany

The following subsidiaries have elected to apply the exemplion ovailable under §244, section 3 of the
German Commercial Code and have not prepared and publshed financial slatements under German
GAAF bacause they are included as fully consolidated subsidiaries in the ATG Group financial statements,

AKA Promotions {Austraiia) Pty id!
Encore Merchandise {Austratia) Pty Limiled!!

The Ambaoassador Theatre Group Asia Pacific Pty
Limited'?

Subsidiary undertoking % Shares held Principal aclivity
BB Entertainment Holding GmbH® Holding company
BB Group GmbH® Holding/Managerment
serviCes company
88 Promotiocn GmbH? Promotions company
Bodyguard verwaltungs GmbH™ Heolding company
Bodyguard musical GrmbH & Co KG'? Produchion company
ESMS Gmbh® Marketing serviceas
Fandango Musical GrmbH? Production company
On Stage Productions GmbH' Production company
Mehr-BB Entertainment GmibH '’ Holding company
Deutsche Eintrittskarten TKS Gmbt'? Ticketing company
Deutsche Eintrittskarten TKS Service Centar GmbH'T Ticketing company
Dirty Dancing Toumee Prociyktions GmbH & Co. KG!'# Production campany
Metr-BB Theater GmibH!$ Thegter operator
MMS Mehr! Marketing & Sales GmbH™2 Marketing services
Musi?::al-Dome Yerwallungs- und Betriebsgessiiscaft Theater operator
mbH"
Starlignt Express GmbH!S Production company
HP-Theater Produktionsgesellschaft mioH'S Production company
Dirty Dancing Gastspiel Verwaitungs GmbHs Holding company
incorporated in Australia
Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held Principal aclivity

Markeling services
Dormant
Production company

Asseciates and Joint Ventures
Name Incorporated % Shares held  Principal aclivity
ASS. Concerts & Promaolion GmbH Germany 49 8% Production compony
HP West End Limiledt United Kingdom 25% Production company
JB UK Tour § Productions Lig? United Kingdom 0% Producfion company
[SM Show AGH Swilzerland 50% Production company

a8
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33, Subsidiary entllies, associates and Joint verndures and invesiments {conlinued)

Cther investments
Name incorporated % Shares held  Principal activity
Cieven Investments Lid United Kingdom 10% Production company
Kings Thedatre Redeveiopment Company  USA 1.08% Venue developer
uc
Merlin Entertcinments pic Unitad Kingdom 0.00% Entertcintment group
Stageservice Frankfurtarn Main GmbH Gemarny 0% Preduction company

' These companies have a registered office of 28 $t. George Street, London W18 2FA

?These comparias have a registarad office of | 15 Shaftesbury Avenue. Cambridge Circus, London WC2H 8AF
¥Thesa companias have o registerad office of 27 Foor Alexonder House, Church Path, Woking, Suffey

GU21 4EJ

+This company has a registerad office of 5% Floor. 8% New Bond Street, London W15 1BA

*These companies have g registered office of Capitol Services, nc., 1675 South State 5t., 5te B, Dovey,

CE 19901

sThese companies have a registered office of Capitol Corporate Services, Inc.. 8550 United Plaza Bidg. I Ste
3035, Baton Rouge, LA 70809

TThese companies have a registerad office of Capitcl Corporate Services. Inc., 206 E. $th 1., Ste 1300,

Austin, TX 78701

8This company has aregistered ofﬂée of Fitelon, Lasky, Aslan, Couture, & Garmise, Richard Garmise, 531

Sih Ave #6405, New Yark, NY 10174

#These companies have a registered office of RontgenstraBe 7, 68147 Mannheim

'0These companies have a registered office of Landsbergstrae 28, 50678 KAin

""These companies have a registered office of Suite &.1, Level 6, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melboume, Victoria

3004, Australia

W2 This company has a registered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Street, Doulidle Bay, NSW 2028

131his company has a regisiered office of CamaenstraBe 12, 8032 Zurch

HThis company has o regifered office of Komoedienstr. 11, 50687 Kdin

#This comparny has a registered office of Ekrather Str. 30, 40233 Dosseldorf

¢ This cornpany has o registered office of BanksstraBe 28, 20097 Hamburg :
7 This company has o registered office of Goidgasse 1, 50448 Koin

18 This company has o registered coffice of Stadionning 24, 44791 Bochum |
1?*This company has a registered office of 1800 Post Gak Bivd. 6 Boulevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas
FFO56

This company has aregistered office of 1313 N Market 81, Ste 5100 Wilmington, DE 19201
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